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Part of Gaza main Showroom opening ceremony

Our Values

Respect All: Embracing modesty and
respecting everyone regardless of their
position or status.

Engage All: Contributing to our community
and building social partnerships that add long-
term and sustainable value.

Make a Difference: Innovation that matters is
at the core of what we do and accomplish.

Our Vision

To become the telecom provider of choice in
Palestine by leading in customer experience
and innovation while fulfilling the expectations
of our stakeholders.




2017
ACHIEVEMENTS

IN BRIEF

Wataniya Mobile

More than IN GAZA

An increase of 31% compared
to the previous year

85.6 MILLION

The Value of operational
revenues.

CORPORATE
SOCIAL

RESPONSIBILITY 18.8 million

The Earnings Before
Interest, Taxes,
Depreciation and

Amortization (EBITDA)




Wataniya Mobile

Journey

January
Inception of
Wataniya Mobile

2008

o

July - Acquiring
frequencies to venture
into business and establish
network in the West Bank
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November
Launching business
in the West Bank

2010

November - Raising
of capital - Wataniya
Mobile becomes a Public
Shareholding Company

December - Listing December
of Wataniya Mobile in More than one million
Palestine Exchange (PEX) subscribers

2017 2018

o o

November - Launching January
business services in Gaza Launching 3G services
Strip
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CHAIRMAN'S

§

S

MESSAGE

Dear valued shareholders,

A journey of one-thousand miles
begins with one step. We started
our journey together. We faced
difficulties and we overcame
obstacles. We did not despair
because we firmly believed that if
we were at the beginning of the
road, it would be shameful to lose
hope. How could we despair when
we, the people of Palestine, have
fought to live on this land and build
it? Hand in hand our land will thrive
and prosper, and with our concerted
efforts Wataniya Mobile will become
the largest telecommunications
company in Palestine.

This is Wataniya Mobile. We promised you

we were close to realizing the promise we

have made, and today we are close to reach
our goal. Eight years of assiduous and hard
work have enabled us to officially enter Gaza
market and launch our business services
there. Moreover, we have succeeded in
launching 3G services in the West Bank as a
result of tremendous efforts we have made for
this purpose.

In November 2009, Wataniya Mobile officially
launched its commercial services in the
WestBank but nevertheless could not enter
Gaza because the Company was denied the
permission to enter technical equipment into
Gaza or acquire the spectrum of frequencies
to operate there. However, Wataniya Mobile
did not falter or give in; rather, after eight
years of hard work and determination,

and specifically on 23 November 2017, the
Company managed to officially launch its
commercial services in Gaza Strip thus
declaring the end of the monopoly of the
telecommunications market in Gaza which
lasted for 18 years.

To complete our success story, Wataniya
Mobile has successfully launched 3G services
in the West Bank, providing subscribers with
the opportunity to enjoy the use of internet,
applications and programs anytime and
anywhere through their smart phones. We
will continuously work to launch 3G services
in Gaza Strip in the near future. Our people
deserve the best services and technologies
like all the peoples of the world.

Dear Shareholders,

We aspire through Launching Wataniya Mobile
in Gaza strip to recover, revitalize and promote
Palestinian economy. We have indeed provided
hundreds of direct work opportunities and
thousands of indirect work opportunities,
noting that since 2000 Gaza Strip has been
subjected to a severe economic blockade that
impeded all kinds of capital investment. The
people of Gaza are passing through dire times
and we hope the presence of Wataniya Mobile
in their midst will make a constructive change
in their life.

We are certain, God willing, that Wataniya

Mobile will succeed in Gaza and that launching
3G services in the West Bank will have great

results. Wataniya Mobile is determined to move
forwards with steady and confident steps so that
2018 will be the year of change and liberation

for the Palestinian telecommunications market.
Palestinians will be granted the right to choose in
a competitive and fair environment. We hope that
our efforts will culminate in the launch of Mobile
number portability will allow subscribers to change
their telecommunications operator without a need
to change their numbers.

We can say that 2018 will witness a new direction

in the telecommunications sector in Palestine.

This new direction has been initiated by Wataniya
mobile and citizens and investors alike will benefit
from it. About Two months ago we managed to raise
Wataniya Mobile capital to US$ 293 million during
the extraordinary general assembly meeting and
that's for the essential projects we have launched,
and will enable us to provide distinctive and large-
scale services to our subscribers.

The outcomes of the successful projects we
achieved last year have resulted in an increase

in customer satisfaction and strengthened our
position in the market. The subscribers base
continues to grow and to exceed the 1 Million
subscriber. Likewise, Wataniya Mobile's revenues
rose to US$ 86 million by the end of 2017 compared
to US$ 84 million in 2016. Operational profit
before deduction of interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) amounted to around US$ 19
million.

Let me take the opportunity to extend gratitude
and appreciation to our shareholders for their
continuous support since the inception of the
Company. Allow me as well to praise the continued
support and assistance of the shareholders and
founders of Wataniya Mobile, Ooredoo Group

and the Palestine Investment Fund (PIF), and

their contribution to expanding Wataniya Mobile’s
role in corporate social, cultural and national
responsibility.

Finally, I would like to extend my deep gratitude to
my colleagues, members of the Board, the Executive
management and our staff for their outstanding
efforts, with all your efforts the Company grow and
prosper.

Respectfully,
Mohammad Abu Ramadan
Chairman of the Board
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CEO'S
MESSAGE

Our Valued Shareholders,

@ E “We extend our salutation crowned
with love and respect to all our dear

shareholders who have believed in us
over the past years, to the founding
partners of Wataniya Mobile Ooredoo
Group and the Palestine Investment
Fund for their unwavering support and
confidence.

and Wataniya Mobile is proud to
ccomplishment of the two biggest
ts inception, which are the official
e Company's commercial activity in
ten years of denial, and the launching
s in the West Bank after many years of
efforts.

beginning has a tale to tell. The tale of Wataniya
e is like the tale of the Palestinian people who

struggle to realize their rights and liberate their
land. We at Wataniya Mobile have faced tremendous
obstacles and were deprived of the honor to provide
services to our people in Gaza Strip for many years,
but with the perseverance of our staff that faced
all challenges with determination, we were able to
introduce telecommunication towers and technical
equipment with best high technologies for operating
Wataniya Mobile network. In addition, we were able to
prepare our showrooms network, partners, dealers,
distributors and officially launch our commercial
services in Gaza in November 2017.

Wataniya Mobile has achieved a success story in Gaza.
During the first three months alone the number of
subscribers reached several hundred-thousands. This

is in itself a success story that reflects the strength of
our services in Gaza. Our motto was and is still to break
monopoly and out an end for it once and for all as well
as provide the population of Gaza to choose their most
favorable network. Now Wataniya Mobile operates in full
swing in both the West Bank and Gaza Strip.

3G

After long years of waiting, additional portion of
the Palestinian frequency spectrum has been
released, we were able to successfully launch 3G
services in January 2018. This proves that we are
in close connection with our subscribers need

and the Palestinian public in general. We are fully
aware that the absence of a Palestinian alternative
for many years in the past has given Israeli
companies to sneak into the Palestinian market
and operate illegally in the West Bank. Even
though we have been allocated 3G frequencies
only, we have largely invested and innovatively

in our network and latest technology so that our
performance would compete and even surpass
the performance of Israeli 4G companies. In fact,
we use the latest version of 3.75 technology that is
very close to 4G.

Moreover, 3G services will enable Palestinian
entrepreneurs to innovate while using the
applications pertaining to the Palestinian people
through which additional services are provided
to subscribers. Small and medium-size firms that
depend in their work on the internet have started
using 3G permanently and strongly.

Financial Outcomes

Wataniya continues to operate with the great
success despite the difficulties facing the
Palestinian telecommunications sector and
regardless of the severe competition posed

by the illegal operations of Israeli operators.,.
The financial outcomes of Wataniya Mobile in
2017 present strong evidence of the trust of
Palestinian subscribers in the services provided
by the Company and its expedient marketing

and communication strategy. As a result, the
customer base exceeded more than one million
subscribers by the end of 2017, compared to
773K subscribers in 2016, an increase of 31%. The
Company'’s revenues rose to US$ 86 million by the
end of 2017 compared to US$ 84 million in 2016.
Operational profit before deduction of interest,
tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA)
reached around US$ 19 million.

Raising the Company’s Capital

In line with Wataniya Mobile strategy on
performance development especially after
launching the two largest projects last year and
early this year, the Company's shareholders
decided during the extraordinary General
Assembly meeting held two months ago to raise
the Company’s capital from US$ 258 million

to US$ 293 million, through offering 35 million

shares to shareholders for secondary public offering,
with the view of expanding our investment activities
concurrently with our entry into Gaza market and
developing 3G services in the West Bank.

Corporate Social Responsibility

We, at Wataniya Mobile work with full responsibility
and commitment toward our community, has
developed a sustainable development strategy and
expanded the geographical range of where services
are provided to our community. Wataniya Mobile

is proud to be part and parcel of the Palestinian
community and as a result it has sponsored and
supported a number of educational, sports, and
cultural events over 2017. The Company has also

a strong presence in Palestinian universities,
organizations and sport centers, as well as in national
and religious occasions.

Respectively, For the third year, in the field of

sports, the Company sponsored Wataniya Mobile
Professional tournament, which is the most important
tournament in Westbank, as well as the Wataniya
Mobile First League Football Championship, which is
the largest and most important championship in the
Gaza Strip.

In addition, Wataniya Mobile contributed to the
reconstruction of the old city of Hebron and the
renovation of homes and streets through partnering
with Hebron Rehabilitation committee. This is the
largest sponsorship provided by the private sector
to the local community. The above two largest
sponsorship are provided through the mother
company - Ooredoo Group to the Palestinian
community.

2018 ... New Telecommunications Map

Having launched 3G services, we are certain and
confident that Wataniya Mobile will change the
telecommunications map in Palestine. 3G new
technology will boost the Palestinian economy and
empower companies to be more efficient and give
rise to more small and medium-size companies
specialized in the development and implementation of
applications.

In the end I would like to extend my deepest gratitude
to our staff who have been loyal to the company and
who have worked hard to launch the commercial
services in Gaza Strip and launch 3G services in the
West Bank. I would like as well to thank the Board of
Directors, shareholders and investors for their trust
in the Executive Management and Wataniya Mobile
staff.

Dr. Durgham Maraee
Chief Executive Officer







The administrative and Operational report contains important information

about our business and performance for the year ended 31 December 2017. We
recommend reading this section of the annual report in line with the audited
financial statements section for the year 2017 and its notes, which were prepared in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Telecommunications
Market

Mobile telecommunications services are market marked a quantum leap for the
provided in the Palestinian market by two telecommunications sector; however, this
licensed companies; Wataniya Mobile, and step was incomplete due to the fact that
the Palestine Cellular Communications the Company was unable to operate in the
Co. as part of the Palestine Telecom Group Gaza Strip. But eventually in November
(the incumbent operator). The Palestinian 2017, Wataniya Mobile entered Gaza market
telecommunications market has been and achieved noticeable progress.

under monopoly for more than ten years, Competition in the Palestinian Telecom
until Wataniya Mobile’s services were market isn't limited to the aforementioned
launched in the West Bank by the end of two licensed operators, simply due to the
2009. illegal competition by the Israeli mobile

The entry of Wataniya Mobile into
the Palestinian telecommunications

operators utilizing coverage in the Israeli
settlements constructed in the West Bank.
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Competition
in Brief

Wataniya Mobile is characterized by a high competitive capacity, being one of Ooredoo’s operators
that have long experience in the telecommunications sector and operate in 10 countries in the
Middle East and North Africa. Hence the Company provides high quality cellular services in line
with best international practices and agreements. Wataniya Mobile subscribers will benefit from
the local and international prices and the highest standards of network services.

Wataniya Mobile has achieved noticeable progress over the recent years increasing its market
share and maintaining an advanced status in the local market. In an extremely significant step

for Palestinian economy, the Company launched its business in the Gaza Strip which constitutes
approximately 40%-45% of the total Palestinian market. Moreover, Wataniya Mobile launched its
services in the Gaza strip and inaugurated the best and stronger network in Palestine. Early this
year the Company was able to bring technical equipment into the Gaza Strip and build the most
updated telecommunications network that has a performance comparable to that of international
networks.

Wataniya Mobile has increased its market share to 25% by the end of 2017. The calculation
excluded Israeli illegal competition. This success, coupled with the launch of the Company'’s
official services in the Gaza Strip, is attributed to the successful sales and marketing strategies
implemented by the Wataniya Mobile throughout the year to attract and retain subscribers,

as well as the deployment of an extensive distribution network capable of meeting the needs

of subscribers in terms of time and place. Moreover, a 24/7 subscribers’ service center is fully
operational and provides services to our subscribers throughout the country in line with the best
international standards.

Wataniya Mobile has demonstrated its ability to compete in the Palestinian market. It has
succeeded in mixing high-quality communication services, providing the most up-to-date
products in the Palestinian market by launching 3G services in the West Bank by the beginning
of 2018. The company is working towards positive change and development in the Palestinian
economy, with the number of subscribers rising to more than one million subscribers at the end of

2017.
Wataniya Mobile Market share
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OUR STRATEGY ﬁ WATANIYA MOBILE
-« KEY STRENGTHS

Wataniya Mobile features several aspects while running its business in the
Palestinian telecommunications market:

To achieve our vision and advance our growth, we focus on three strategic @bjectives:

First: Focus on Growth and Revenues Third: Leverage Ooredoo’s Group

+  Competing in a new pattern, closer to Efficiencies

our subscriber’s life style, by introducing - Sharing the know-how and expertise.

customized services in harmony with local

First: Advanced Network Third: Competent Staff and Incentivizing

geography and subscribers’ behaviors. + Roaming and interconrlgct. |

Focusing on growth and increase revenues
at unprecedented rates, while rationalizing
overheads.

Developing distinguished plans to

retain our customers and develop a
communication network as a platform for
offering profitable diverse products.

Providing best services in the Gaza Strip,
rehabilitating the telecommunications

Procurem nd ecanomies of scale. J
ents,and ecan bt s

Value-added services and prod?s.

Regional initiatives.

o

The Company operates an advanced
network which was designed and built

as a turnkey project by Ericsson to a
specification particular to the Palestinian
market using the latest possible
technology. This allows Wataniya Mobile

to grow its subscriber base whilst also
allowing for high minutes usage, which
enables Wataniya Mobile to be flexible in its
marketing strategy and offer differentiated
and more competitive products and tariffs

Policies

Wataniya Mobile employs professional and
qualified staff with broad experience in the
telecommunication services. In order for the
Company to achieve its goals, it adopts an

administrative system based on incentives and
guidance hence combining both the strategic

goals of the Company and the personal and
professional goals of its staff.

; i o o Fourth: Strong Shareholders Support
as a result. Wataniya Mobile's ability to

react to customers’ needs and innovative
product offerings is largely a function of
its high quality network.

network, building personal capabilities of

staff and creating a positive environment. Wataniya Mobile benefits from strong support,

and international and local experience, provided
by its ultimate Shareholders, Ooredoo Group
and Palestine Investment Fund (PIF). Wataniya
Mobile leverages Ooredoo’s existing relationships
with suppliers, industry vendors and financing
banks. Ooredoo also enhances Wataniya Mobile’s
ability to access global products, services, people
and know-how and offers time, expertise and
resources to Wataniya Mobile’'s management

as and when needed. Wataniya Mobile benefits
from PIF's local knowledge and its expertise in
operating several key businesses in Palestine and
its extensive connections throughout Palestine.

+  Providing efficient 3G services in the
Palestinian telecommunications market.

Second: Resilient Administrative

Second: Differentiated Proposition and Operational Structure

+ To continue reinforcing and expanding the
telecommunications network.

Despite the intense challenges caused by
the volatile economic climate, political
instability and the fierce competition in the
Palestinian telecommunications market,
Wataniya Mobile constantly finds prompt
and effective solutions due to the high

*  To enhance our extensive sales and
distribution networks, both directly and
indirectly.

' ' e that can casilbellliisted to the work opportunities and distinguished
To promote the Company’s contributions surroiingis nvironinent cope with the telecommunication services to the public.
to sustainable development by focusing J \ latest developments in e Mok ed Moreover, the Company devotes its resources
gfforts on social responsibilities, economic & i Foi £ . to take part in and contribute to social events
input, and environment conservation - satis e RS torjeraginis i
put, , — F has contributed to developing a flexible and support of cultural, educational, sports and

To promote our trademark and brand
under the slogan of ‘Value for Money!

To outclass through excellent quality
services.

resilience that characterize the Company's
operations and administration.

Throughout the years the Company
has developed a resilient operational
capacity and organizational structure

strategy and providing more

ive . oducts and tariffs.
¥

Fifth: Social Role

Wataniya Mobile has a visible social role.
It supports national priorities and provide

charity programs.

21



FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

Wataniya Mobile continues to achieve successes through its distinguished
performance and growth in 2017. The Company launched its business services
in the Gaza Strip, a step that will have a positive impact on the Company’s
performance in the short run and form a driving force towards the achievement
of its goals and objectives.
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Within the Company's efforts towards
profitability, Wataniya Mobile has in 2017
enhanced its capabilities and quality of its
services by way of reinforcing investment

in the mobile phones infrastructure and
operational systems. In 2017 capital
expenditures amounted to US$ 54.8, which
was earmarked to cover for Wataniya Mobile
two major projects, namely launching Wataniya
Mobile in the Gaza Strip and 3G services in the
West Bank.

Despite the numerous challenges,

the competition in the Palestinian
telecommunications sector and the illegal
competition witnessed by the sector from
Israeli companies, Wataniya Mobile managed
to achieve a high performance level in 2017 as
aresult of the Company’s smart marketing
strategy that is based on the needs and
aspirations of customers.

The successes achieved by Wataniya Mobile
include the following:

The base of Wataniya Mobile subscribers
increased by 31% compared to the previous
year to reached more than one-million by
the end of 2017, as a result of launching new
programs, products and services, as well as
prom campaigns and innovations.

The Company has achieved growth in its
annual revenues by 2% reaching US$ 85.6
million at the end of 2017 compared to
US$ 84.1 million in 2016.

The Company's Earnings before Interest,
Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA)
reached US$ 18.8 million compared to US$ 21.9
million at the end of 2016. The decrease was
due to rise in Wataniya Mobile’s expenditures

in 2017 forz launching its services in the Gaza
strip and 3G in the West Bank.

Wataniya Mobile achieved net income of
US$ 6.6 million compared to a net income of
US$ 1.5 million for the same period last year.
This is mainly due to the Company's significant
costs of preparations for launching the 3G
services in 2017, a situation that is expected

in light of the large investment expenses.
These investments are expected to result in

a significant change in the performance of
Wataniya Mobile in the medium and long term,
and in achieving sustainable profitability as its
subscriber base continues to grow in the West
Bank and Gaza.




PROGRAMS
AND SERVICES

In line with Wataniya Mobile’s
commitment to providing the best
services to its customers and to always
be the pioneers and innovators, we
present the most important campaigns
and programs organized and carried out
by Wataniya Mobile during 2017.

Super Programs: Launched in 2016, these
programs, including Super Card, Super Bill
and Super Shabab, were designed to provide
subscribers with the opportunity to call at
low unified prices using all local networks,
including making calls to Jerusalem, and
Jordan.

New Bonus Scheme “Nujoom:” Wataniya
Mobile launched in the third quarter of 2016
the New Bonus Scheme “Nujoom” which
provided old and new customers free monthly
points based on the value of their monthly
consumption. The points can be substituted
with mobile phones, free balances, gifts in kind
and other surprises at any time. The privileges
subscribers receive are related to their own
rating, and the more the rate of consumption
is the higher the rating and the more are the
privileges and bonus.

Campaigns & Services: During 2017 Wataniya
Mobile presented different campaigns and
promos with the aim to encourage recharging,
attract new subscribers and honor old
subscribers. These campaigns grant prizes for
recharging, free balances, chips and packages.
The most important campaigns launched by
Wataniya Mobile in 2017 include the following:

+ Smart mobile and gold pound every hour

* “Snake and Ladder” Campaign

+ “200 Double your Cash Balance” Campaign
+ “In Ramadan All Are Winners” Campaign

+ “Scratch Code and Win" Campaign
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Main Distribution
Methods and Sales
Channels

In line with its strategy to provide its services to
all citizens and residents within the Palestinian
market, Wataniya Mobile deemed it necessary to
establish an extensive network of distributors,
agents and points of sale in order to guarantee
that the Company'’s services and products

are widely and easily available to subscribers.
Wataniya Mobile has established the following
distribution channels:

1. Wataniya Mobile Showrooms: Wataniya Mobile
has 10 showrooms strategically distributed
across the main cities in The West Bank, and

6 showrooms in Gaza strip, in order to provide
the Company'’s valued customers with quality
service and make all its products/services at
their fingertips.

2. Distributors: Wataniya Mobile entered into
contractual agreements with two of the leading
distribution companies in the Palestinian market
in the West Bank and three companies in the
Gaza Strip, through which Wataniya Mobile’s rate
plans and services are dealt out to all agents,
FMCGs, and points of sale.

3. Authorized Agents Network: Wataniya Mobile entered into contracts with 135 authorized agents
distributed throughout the West Bank and 153 agents in the Gaza strip. The Company opened
accredited outlets where subscribers can received various services including change of numbers
and chips, e-payment, SIM card registration and maintenance of mobile phones. Wataniya

Mobile's authorized agents also to provide a number of other services and facilities including the
e-recharging.

4. Points of Sale Network: In 2017, the number of points of sale reached 1800 locations distributed
in the West Bank and the Gaza Strip, where prepaid chips and charging cards are available to our
valued subscribers. In addition, the e-recharging facility is provided at these locations.

Future Prospects

Wataniya Mobile launched in 2017 its services in the Gaza Strip and will continue to expand the
base of its subscribers and offer services at best prices. The Company also seeks to provide

a unique and unprecedented experience in the field of telecommunications, targeting both
individuals and companies.

Wataniya Mobile is implementing the strategy of customers’ experience through all its
communication points, taking the comments of its subscribers into serious consideration. The
Company will strive to provide customers with the best 3G services at reasonable low process.

Research and Product Development

Since our inception, we have invested in research and development to offer the best products and
services to our customers. This is reflected in many of the interactive campaigns and distinctive
programs launched by the Company recently, relying on specialized marketing studies carried out
continuously throughout the year as well as on international standards and indicators through
which Wataniya Mobile's performance is compared with its counterparts locally and abroad.

The Company also carries out many studies and opinion polls for subscribers to evaluate its
services and products, and carries out many studies analyzing the needs and requirements of
the market. In addition, Wataniya Mobile has focused on business and product research and
development by looking at the latest developments in the region in terms of telecommunications
and the Internet by building strategic relationships with various parties and partners.




Wataniya
Mobile Family

Growing with Our
Employees in Gaza 4

year
2017 has
witnessed
tremendous
challenges, but our

among staff that culminated in Wataniya Mobile
ranking third in the job commitment Excellence
Award for 2017 in the Middle East and North Africa.

staff demonstrated a high
level of loyalty and capability to
achieve unprecedented results that exceed all

our

expectations.

The story began when Wataniya Mobile announced
vacancies in the Gaza Strip in preparation for
launching its services in the strip. Our management
reviewed thousands of applications to different
positions submitted by thousands of applicants and
held around 3,500 interviews in a very short time
not exceeding three months. We have followed the
highest degrees of professionalism and credibility
in the selection of new employees on the basis of
efficiency and professionalism, and aligned their
capabilities with the requirements of the jobs.

In record time we managed to recruit male and
female colleagues to operate different sections in
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offices in

Gaza. The new staff received

intensive training provided by a professional capacity
development team.

Wataniya Mobile staff did not slacken to provide
support to new recruits during the period in
preparation for the launch. They worked day and
night and continued to inspire new colleagues with
the experience they have gained during working

for Wataniya Mobile and transfer to them their
knowledge and expertise. The new recruits are now
ready to start their future and journey of life working
for the biggest and most professional company in
Palestine.

In 2017 Wataniya Mobile expanded its cadre and
recruited more than 175 new employees thus
raising the total number of staff to 572 male and
female employees until 31 December 2017. With
perseverance and determination new and old
recruits will join efforts and make Wataniya Mobile
a pioneering company in Palestine.

In spite of the of the momentum of the projects
that Wataniya Mobile has been engaged in, the
Company has given job commitment special
significance through an integrated program
carried out by the Human resources. The program
had a clear impact on increasing job commitment

We are proud of our achievements and staff.

Engagement Score




ECONOMY AND INVESTMENT
IN PALESTINE

Palestinian economy is founded on a fair legal and legislative environment that
incentivizes sustainable growth and enhances its capability to confront emerging
challenges. Despite the numerous obstacles and difficulties, the Palestinian
economy is still capable of achieving average growth rates.

Economic Climate

Palestinian economy continued to suffer from the political and security downbeat
in 2017.
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Increase in Gross Domestic Product (GDP) and
Stagnation in Per Capita GDP in 2017

Preliminary estimates indicate a rise in the real GDP in Palestine reached 3.2% during 2017
compared to 2016. This percentage approximates the population increase percentage and
therefore the per capita GDP grew only slightly growth by 0.1% during 2017 compared to 1.0% in
the previous year.

The increase in the GDP is caused primarily by an increase in economic activities that have the
highest GDP share, primarily by an increase of 4.4% in the construction sector, in which the total
number of employees increasd by 18%, followed by the industrial sector that witnessed a VAT
growth of 4.2% in in 2017 compared to 2016. The total number of employees in the industrial sector
increasd by around 7%.

Preliminary estimates also pointed to an increase of 2.5% in 2017 in the total number of employees
in the Palestinian local labor market compared to 2016. The increase is caused by an increase in
the number of laborers in the construction, industrial and services sectors.

Real GDP in million (base year 2004)

8.28

2017

Source: Arab Advisors Group

Palestine Exchange (PEX) 2017

As of the end of 2017, the total number of PEX shares traded reached 271 million shares achieving
an increase of 16.47% compared to the previous year. Also the value of shares traded rose by 5.37%
reaching US$ 469 million.

Palestine Economy Performance Forecast in 2018

According to forecast by the PCBS, the real GDP value is expected to rise by %2.6 percent during
2018 and a drop in per capita share by 0.2%. PCBS estimates also indicate a growth in the total
value of private and public consumption by 2.5% and in the total number of investments by 6.8%
and an increase in the number of employees by 4.8% in 2018.




Since the advent of Wataniya Mobile in 2007, the Company'’s operations have had a positive
impact on the Palestinian economy. From the direct investment Wataniya Mobile pumped into the
market, to the establishment of its Network infrastructure, from the lease of sites and premises,
to creating direct job opportunities, Wataniya Mobile added new components to the Palestinian
economy. The impact Wataniya Mobile has had on the Palestinian economy was not short-lived,
as it continued after the Company’s commercial launch with liberalizing the Palestinian telecom
market. Not only have Wataniya Mobile's operations spurred competition, but they also brought
along positive outcomes to all subscribers, both individuals and corporate, in terms of quality of
services rendered, rates offered, enhancement of partnerships with service providers and raising

their capacities.

Liberalizing the Palestinian Telecom Market

Primarily, liberalizing the Palestinian
telecommunications market was realized

in the West Bank and after years of hard

work we succeeded in liberalizing the
telecommunications market in the Gaza
Strip. Wataniya Mobile launched its services
in the Gaza Strip in the third quarter of 2017
and broke the monopoly of the Palestinian
telecommunications market that lasted for 18
years in the strip.

In 2006, The Palestinian National Authority
resolved to liberalize the telecom market

and open the door for competition following

a monopoly that has lasted since 1997. In
accordance with the strategy laid down by the
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Palestinian Ministry of Telecommunications
and Information Technology, with the purpose
of increasing the base of telecommunications
users, and providing quality services at lower
prices to Palestinian citizens, a tender was
floated for the license to build and operate a
second mobile telecommunications network in
Palestine.

The entry of Wataniya Mobile into the
Palestinian telecommunications market in
2009, namely in the West Bank, is a milestone
achievement not only towards encouraging
competition, but also giving Palestinian
citizens the opportunity to choose the provider
they may desire. Needless to say, the launch of

Wataniya Mobile's operations contributed to
providing multiple options, in terms of creative
methods in rendering services, prices, and
ultimately higher service quality.

Wataniya Mobile provides numerous programs
through which the Company was able to

reach out to Palestinian citizens throughout
the West Bank and form a base of more than
one-million subscribers by the end of 2017. The
following chart shows clearly how the advent
of Wataniya Mobile impacted the growth of
mobile penetration rate, from 34% by the end
of 2008 to 80% by the end of 2017.

Penetration Rate In West Bank
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Government revenues

In addition to the above, Wataniya Mobile's
operations contribute directly to the increase
of revenues into the Palestinian Authority's
Treasury, namely the license fees, in addition
to taxes, including income tax and Value
Added Tax. Wataniya Mobile's contribution
extends indirectly to reach the government
public facilities or other areas as envisaged
under the government's plans.

Creating Job
Opportunities

Due to the nature, size, quality and
geographical stretch of its operations,
Wataniya Mobile contributed heavily to
creating various forms of partnership with
Palestinian businesses across the board.
These partnerships, without a doubt, created
indirect job opportunities to many Palestinian
citizens, through rendering services to
Wataniya Mobile, and other business

opportunities. In addition, Wataniya Mobile
is currently opening new horizons to small
and medium-size businesses, and in the near
future this will extend to reach to Gaza Strip.

By the end of 2017, Wataniya Mobile estimated
creating more than 4,000 direct and indirect
job opportunities within the West Bank and
Gaza Strip markets. This entails sources of
income and support to Palestinian families,
and contributes directly to the improvement
of citizens’ living standard.

Impact on Palestine
Exchange (PEX)

Until date, Wataniya Mobile stands as the top
of PEX’s listed companies in terms of paid-up
capital, with US$ 258 million, which indirectly
constitutes 6.89% of PEX market capitalization
by the end of 2017. In addition, Wataniya
Mobile contributed 98% to PEX's total trading
sessions in 2017 thereby helping PEX to attract
foreign investors and cement its foothold in
the international investment arena.

As PEX's blue-chip Company, Wataniya Mobile
adheres to the principles of transparency and
governance, as applicable by the Law, PCMA,
and PEX regulations. And as the market's top
mover, Wataniya Mobile was selected, for the
sixth year in a row, among the heavyweight
sample companies affecting the performance
of the PEX's Al Quds Index. This also required
certain standards to be achieved, namely
share’'s trading liquidity, trading volume,
turnover rate, number of trading sessions, and
above all the Company’s market value.

Local Partnerships

At the domestic front, Wataniya Mobile
promotes long-term strategic partnerships
with local companies. The Company prefers
local products in support of Palestinian
economy and seeks to create partnerships
with medium and small companies, which
form the bedrock of Palestinian economy, in
confirmation of the principle of mutual benefit.
Wataniya Mobile provides medium and small
companies with services and programs based
on their needs and activities.




OUR

ENVIRONMENT

We are keen to preserve our environment, so we continue to invest in promoting our environment
friendly practices in order to maintain a clean and healthy environment. Wataniya Mobile has been
addressing the environmental impacts of the operation of its network in the Palestinian territories,

based on three main areas:

First: Addressing Radiation Impact

Upon the installation of transmission

stations, Wataniya Mobile applies the local

and international standards and procedures.
This is achieved through the application of

the recommendations handed down by both

the Ministry of Environmental Affairs and the
Ministry of Telecommunications and Information
Technology. In addition, Wataniya Mobile adopts
certain measures in harmony with the standards
laid down by the International Commission on
Non-Ionizing Radiation Protection (ICNIRP).

To maintain compliance, the following measures
are adopted by Wataniya Mobile:

e +  Wataniya Mobile uses European/Swedish

' devices and equipment, which are in

- compliance with the requirements and
recommendations of the EU with respect to
maintaining safe and healthy environment.

+  Wataniya Mobile's transmission stations are
scientifically designed using elevation tests.
In addition, the types of towers and antennas
are carefully selected to suit the geographical
nature of the coverage area.

e | s B

+ Insulation fences are set up around all
Wataniya Mobile’s stations, in compliance with
the relevant local and European standards, to
ensure the safety of citizens.

+  Prior to the operation of any station, Wataniya
Mobile obtains the relevant approvals from
both the Ministry of Environmental Affairs
and the Ministry of Telecommunications and
Information Technology and complies with all
their requirements.

The adoption of scientific methods in the
installation procedures and operations contribute
directly to the reduction of radio microwave
exposure below the standard set under the
Guidelines of (ICNIRP). Therefore, the microwave
radiation resulting from Wataniya Mobile's
transmission stations, as measured, is (0.005
mw/cm2) which is lower than the internationally
acceptable limit of (0.45 mw/cm?2).

==

Second: Addressing
Emissions Impact

The Operation & Maintenance Team at Wataniya
Mobile follows standard procedures and practical
measures for the purpose of reducing the
emission of environment pollutants, including
smoke and gas emissions. These measures, inter
alia, include:

+ Installing hybrid systems in all transmission
stations which have no electricity
connections yet. These hybrid systems
consist of a diesel generator and energy-
saving batteries, which reduce the operational
time of each generator by more than 50%,
and ultimately are environment-friendly and
cut down on fuel consumption. The hybrid
systems reduce the emission of smokes and
gases harmful to the environment.

o The Network Maintenance Team carries
out regular maintenance and precautionary
service works to all the generators and cooling
machines, whether at the transmission stations
or the Company'’s premises. These regular checks
aim at ensuring the safety and efficiency of the
equipment. This per se contributes to power
rationalization, reduction of harmful emissions.

In addition, strategies are in place to prevent
leakage of fuel, oil, or Freon refrigeration gas into
the environment:

Third: Treatment &
Recycling of Solid Waste
Materials

The management of solid waste materials
resulting from operations can be summarized in
the collection and sorting of all waste materials
of whatever nature. The waste materials are then
disposed of in the internationally recognized
scientific methods. The process adopted by
Wataniya Mobile can be summarized as follows:

2 Recycling the waste materials though
dismantling these materials before reducing them
to the raw state for further use.

o Wataniya Mobile has signed an agreement
with a professional organization specialized in
recycling used liquid batteries that are to be
removed and destroyed from the Company's
operational sites.

Fourth: Public Safety and
Safety at Work

Wataniya Mobile provided specialized training

on safety and civil defense to its field employees
working on transmission towers. In addition, the
Company oblige contractors constructing the
towers to follow safety procedures at work.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

Sustainable development contributes to changing the socio-economic and

technological life pattern and helps upgrade productive human life. Accordingly,

Wataniya Mobile continues to upgrade its staff, partake in the successes of
the Palestinian community, and contributes to strengthening and building our
economy.

Annual Report | 2017

Our Community

“Year after year, Wataniya Mobile takes an active role and supports various
community activities on the domestic, regional and international levels. For the
third consecutive year, Wataniya Mobile organized and sponsored a number of
sports, cultural, educational and economic events. In addition, Wataniya Mobile
supported and sponsored children and youth activities with the view of upgrading
youth education while entrenching the Palestinian historic heritage that we are
proud of”

Wataniya Mobile works with a responsible Mobile has sponsored a large number of
vision toward the Palestinian community. educational, cultural and sports activities
The Company has drawn up a sustainable on both the local and international levels
development strategy within its policy in the course of 2017. The Company also

of social responsibility and expanded the maintained a strong presence in Palestinian
range of services it provides to the public. universities, institutions and sports

In line with the Company’s keenness to centers, as well as in religious and national
support the local community, Wataniya occasions.

Wataniya Mobile
Sponsor of Palestinian Football

For the third year in arrow, Wataniya Mobile through Ooredoo sponsored major Palestinian
football events including Wataniya Mobile Professional Football Championship, First Division
league in the Gaza Strip, Super Cup and Abu Ammar Football Championship. In addition,
Wataniya Mobile sponsored the Palestinian State Cup and the Football Academy for Talented
Children in Jerusalem.




Sports Activities
in 2017

* Wataniya Mobile Professional Football
Championship: The Company sponsored
the new season of the football professional
league for the third year in a row.

The championship in which 12 of the

best football teams in Palestinian are
competing will go on until the end of June
2018.

* First Division Championship in Gaza: This
year is a very special year for Wataniya
Mobile because the Company succeeded in
launching its services in the Gaza Strip. For
the third consecutive year, the Company
sponsored the First Division Championship
in Gaza. The championship is the largest in
Gaza and encompasses 12 football clubs.

* Sponsorship of the Super Cup: The Super
Cup match brought together the winning
team from the Professional Football
Championship with the winning team from
Palestinian State Cup. The winning team
was crowned as the Super Cup champion.

* Martyr Abu Ammar Championship: This
is the third sponsorship of the cup final
of Abu Ammar championship, which is
considered one of the most important
football championships in Palestine.
Professional football teams from all
over the west Bank take part in the
championship.
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Palestinian State Cup: Wataniya Mobile
sponsored the Palestinian State Cup in the
northern and southern governorates. The
Company also sponsored for the second
year the Palestinian State Cup final match
and the winning team was crowned the
champion of Palestine.

Sponsorship of the Football Academy

for Talented Children: Wataniya Mobile
sponsored different sports activities for
the Palestinian Football Academy for
Talented Children especially in the city of
Jerusalem. The Academy presents an ideal
place for children in Jerusalem to play and
receive football training.

Organizations Football Championship in
Deir Al-Balah: Wataniya Mobile sponsored
the Second Organizations Football
Championship organized by Deir Al-Balah
Municipality. Twenty teams representing
20 government and civil organizations took
part in the championship.

Sponsoring the Orthodox Club in Beit
Sahour: Wataniya Mobile supported and
sponsored activities organized by the
Orthodox Club in Beit Sahour during

the course of 2018. The Orthodox Club

is considered one of the largest clubs

in Bethlehem governorate and has
professional football and basketball teams.

Cultural and Youth Activities
in 2017

Wataniya Mobile gives special significance to
Palestinian youth since they are the foundation
for the future of the Palestinian community.
Based on our belief in our responsibility towards
our nation, Wataniya Mobile seeks to reinforce
Palestinian national identity and to promote
Palestinian culture and traditions especially
among the younger generation.

* Sponsorship of Spider Boy: Wataniya Mobile
supported and sponsored Spider Boy
Mohammad Al-Sheikh from Gaza. Al-Sheikh
can bend into seemingly impossible shapes,
and with this contortion flexibility he has now
broken a world record and aiming for his name
in the Guinness world records. He has given a
special public show in Amman, Jordan.

* Traveler Mu'tasem: Based on its strong belief
to support the youth in realizing their dreams,
Wataniya Mobile supported through the social
media sites the Palestinian traveler Mu'tasem OFFK
Ewewi in his attempt to climb up Mount ATTEN
Everest.

* Marking Palestinian heritage Day in Gaza: In
an atmosphere replete with joy and delight,
Wataniya Mobile marked the Palestinian
Heritage Day in Gaza in cooperation with
Gaza municipality. Bedouin tents were set
up and works of traditional embroidery were
on display, and a special show for horses and

camels was staged. L 4 P
L = i 3 W x
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ommunity Events
in 2017

Wataniya Mobile is keen on supporting and sponsoring the educational sector Reconstruction of the Old City of Hebron: With support from Ooredoo Wataniya Mobile
for the important role it plays in the Palestinian society. During the year 2017, the gontinues to Cohgriblétehto thi ':CSHStr;Ction process gc the old Cit}’] of Hebron. PEJGS$800

. AT ompany contributed through Hebron Reconstruction Committee the amount o
CSmPEIT] SemeerEs. Hie el euing aeTviies thousand allocated to the renovation of homes and streets. The purpose of the support is
to improve life conditions of Palestinian inhabitants and protect Palestinian property from
confiscation by the Israeli authorities. The project covers the old center, infrastructure of
Khan Shaheen and the market facades of Al-Qasaba area.

Children with Cancer Recreation: Wataniya Mobile carried out a recreational activity for
children with cancer in the Gaza Strip. The event included face painting by clowns and
distribution of gifts.

Sponsorships & Donations

N
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\ y € /,g&// Y | \\\,‘s&, Y/l Wataniya Mobile continues to fulfill its duty towards the Palestinian community; and therefore
= &= II——a the Company spares no effort in instilling the spirit of cooperation and giving among the future
= 4 generations. In line with this firm conviction, Wataniya Mobile’s direct total spending on its

social responsibility programs, including sponsorships and donations, amounted to US$ 396,617
and its indirect spending through Ooredoo amounted to US$ 1,800,000 over the course of 2017.

Social Responsibility Policy

Wataniya Mobile is effectively and efficiently translating its policy of social responsibility, and
in line with the Company'’s strategy, Wataniya Mobile sponsors a large number of educational,
cultural and sports activities. Sparing no efforts in paying utmost attention to the Palestinian
social fabric, with all its components, Wataniya Mobile has formed a dedicated committee
responsible for examining the sponsorship applications received. The committee is concerned

with deciding on the nature and type of sponsorship according to the targeted category.




CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
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CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Wataniya Mobile Board of Directors
performs tasks targeting the conciliation
of the interests if investors and those of all
relevant segments, including employees,
suppliers, and local communities. The

main tasks of the Board include upgrading
operational performance, profitability,
empowering the commercial center of the
Company, institutionalization of sustainable
development, applying the principles of
good governance, developing laws and work
mechanisms, controlling and monitoring
performance, managing and identifying risks.

Wataniya Mobile is committed to the criteria
of public shareholding companies in line with
the regulations of corporate governance.

In 2010 the Company adopted a special
governance manual that is consistent with
the rules of corporate governance issued by
the Palestinian Capital Market Authority.




Commitment to
Disclosure:

Wataniya Mobile Board of Directors performs
tasks targeting the conciliation of the interests
if investors and those of all relevant segments,
including employees, suppliers, and local
communities. The main tasks of the Board
include upgrading operational performance,
profitability, empowering the commercial
center of the Company, institutionalization

of sustainable development, applying the
principles of good governance, developing
laws and work mechanisms, controlling and
monitoring performance, managing and
identifying risks.

Wataniya Mobile is committed to the criteria
of public shareholding companies in line with
the regulations of corporate governance.

In 2010 the Company adopted a special
governance manual that is consistent with the
rules of corporate governance issued by the
Palestinian Capital Market Authority.

Board of Directors’
Responsibilities:

The Board of directors is composed of seven
members with a four-year term of office.
The Board members are keen on applying
the rules and criteria of good governance,

which is an integral part of Wataniya Mobile
culture. The duties of the Board of Directors,

are centered on protecting shareholders’
rights and organizing companies’ governance,
are fulfilled through approving and ratifying
the internal policies which regulate the work
of the Company'’s executive management
and its responsibilities, as well as control
over the executive management through the
Board of Directors’ meetings, during which
a detailed presentation about the Company
operations is made to the Board, whether
for the purpose of control or for taking the
administrative decisions that are out of the

executive management's area of specialization,

in addition to disclosure and transparency.

The Board of
directors Meeting:

During the 2017 the Board of Directors held 6
sessions that have been disclosed pursuant to
the disclosure regulations valid in Palestine.
During the sessions, the Board discussed the
achievements of the company and approved
matters of high importance including the
annual strategic plans.

The Board of Directors Committee:
Two main committees support the Board of Directors in the performance of

its tasks and duties:

The Executive Committee

The committee was formed on 10
December 2014, and its members are:

Mr. Mohammed Abu Ramadan, Chairman.
Mr. Khaled Al Mahmoud, Member.
Mr. Issa Al-Muhannadi, Member.

Mr. Rami Barghouti was appointed as
secretary of Committee.

Responsibilities of the Executive
Commiittee:

Review draft regulations and new Company
policies and make recommendations

concerning these to the Board of Directors.

+ Oversee the process of job evaluation and
develop the Company’s compensation
structure.

Approve the process of performance
evaluation and any amendment thereto.

Submit strategic recommendations to

the Board of Directors with regard to the
priorities and risks related to financial and
strategic investment.

The Audit Committee:

The committee was formed on 10
December 2014, and its members are:

Mr. Abdulla Al-Zaman, Chairman.
Mr. Bertrand Alexis, Member.
Mr. Faisal Shawa, Member.

Mr. Rami Barghouti was appointed as
secretary of Committee.

Audit Committee’s
Responsibilities:

Review annual audited financial statements

and interim (quarterly) financial statements,

related reports and accounting matters,
including management processes, before
submission to the Board for adoption.

+ Set objectives and internal auditing policies
and determine their scope.

Select the external auditor, recommend
his/ her appointment, determine his/her
fees and determine the objectives and
scope of his/her work.

Evaluate the performance of internal
and external audit annually, according
predetermined performance indicators.

Responsibility of the Executive Committee in Developing Control and

Internal Monitoring Systems:

Wataniya Mobile Executive Committee has developed a comprehensive and efficient internal
monitoring system that guarantees the accuracy and transparency of financial disclosures
consistently with international criteria and best practices:

Wataniya Mobile developed a set of financial policies and procedures in line with IFRS and
financial disclosure criteria of the Palestinian financial market and valid laws and regulations.

Wataniya Mobile adopted an automated financial system to ensure financial accuracy and

compliance with international criteria.

The financial statements and internal monitoring regulations of Wataniya Mobile are inspected
and reviewed by an independent external auditor and the Company's internal auditor. In order
to ensure independence in line with corporate governance, the Audit Committee holds periodic
meetings with the auditors and Executive Management to review the audit reports and confirm
accuracy of the annual financial statements of the Company.

Accordingly, Wataniya Mobile sees that the control and internal monitoring systems and efficient
and ensure the validity and accuracy of the annual financial statements of the Company.
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Brief Biographies of the
Members of the Board of Directors:

Mr. Mohammed Abu Ramadan

Chairman of the Board of Directors - Representative of Palestine
Investment Fund Mr.

Mohammed Abu Ramadan joined the Board of Directors of Wataniya
Mobile in December 2014. Previously, Mr. Abu Ramadan took office as
Palestinian Minister of State for Planning Affairs during 2012-2014.
In addition to being a Board member of the Palestine Investment
Fund since 2006, the Chairman of the Board of Directors for Abu
Ramadan Investment Group, and the Chairman of the Board for
Gaza Buses Company, Mr. Abu Ramadan has served as member of
the Board of Directors for the Palestinian Monetary Authority, Vice
Chairman of the Board of Directors of Paltrade in addition to other
Board memberships for many companies and economic institutions,
as well as other leading community institutions. Mr. Abu Ramadan
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from Syracuse
University in the United States of America.
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Mr. Khalid Al Mahmoud

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors - Representative of
Wataniya International

Mr. Khalid Al Mahmoud joined the Board of Directors of Wataniya
Mobile in June 2012. Mr. Al Mahmoud serves as Group Chief Officer
of Ooredoo Group's Small & Medium companies, which oversees
number of Ooredoo Group companies. In addition to his duties,

he is the Chairman of Board of Ooredoo Maldives and has also
served in various Boards including the Chairman of Ooredoo
Algeria, Vice Chairman of Ooredoo Oman, Chairman of PTC (Bravo)
Saudi Arabia and Chairman of wi-tribe Pakistan. Since joining in
1989, Mr. AlMahmoud has held number of key positions in Qatar
and abroad including the COO of Ooredoo Oman, Head of Qatar
ISP and Corporate Data services Business Unit, Head of Product
Development and Communication and Head of IT of Ooredoo Qatar.
Mr. Al- Mahmoud holds a Bachelor's degree in Computer Engineering
from the University of Pittsburgh, United States.

Mr. Bertrand Alexis

Member - Representative of Wataniya International

Mr. Bertrand Alexis joined the Board of Directors of Wataniya Mobile
in November 2014. Mr. Alexis is a Senior Legal Director of Ooredoo
Group and a member of the New York State Bar. Before joining
Ooredoo, Mr. Alexis was an Associate General Counsel of Cable &
Wireless plc. Mr. Alexis has a Bachelor of Arts in Economics from
Columbia University and a Juris Doctorate Degree from Harvard
University.
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Mr. Abdulla Al-Zaman

Member - Representative of Wataniya International

Mr. Abdulla Al-Zaman joined the Board of Directors of Wataniya
Mobile in November 2014, and he is the regional CFO of Ooredoo
Group. Mr. Abdulla Al-Zaman has more than 19 years of experience
In Finance. Before joining Ooredoo Group he was the Chief Finance
Officer in Qatar Railways one of the most strategic project in the
State of Qatar. Mr. Al- Zaman, was also in charge of multiple Senior
Financial position in Ras Gas and The National Health Authority. Mr.
Abdulla Al-Zaman holds a Master's degrees in Executive MBA, from
University of Hull and a Bachelor's of Science in Finance & Business
Administration from California State University of Sacramento.

Mr. Faisal Al-Shawwa

Member - Representative of Palestine Investment Fund

Mr. Faisal Al-Shawwa joined the Board of Directors of Wataniya
Mobile in January 2011. He was the General Manager of Al-Shawwa
General Trading and Contracting Company, and is its Chairman of
Board of Directors. In addition, Mr. Al-Shawwa is the Vice Chairman
of the Board of Directors of the Middle East Pharmaceutical
Company, the Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Al-Amal
Asphalt Company, a member of the Board of Directors of the Bank

of Palestine, a member of the Board of Directors of the Palestinian
Electricity Company, and the Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors
of the Palestinian Trade Center (Paltrade). He is a member of the
American Engineering Association, the Contractors’ Union, the Union
of Engineers and the Palestinian Businessmen’s Association. Mr. Al-
Shawwa has a Master’s degree in Business Administration from North
Virginia State University and a Bachelor's degree in Civil Engineering
from Memphis State University. Both universities are in the United
States.
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Mr. Shadi Al Khatib

Member - Representative of Palestine Investment Fund

Mr. Al Khatib joined the Board of Directors of Wataniya Mobile in

May 2016. He is the CEO of PIF's ASWAQ Company for Investment
of Portfolios. His current notable positions as a representative in
companies’ board of directors include: Chairman of Grand Park
Hotels and Resorts Company, Board Member of Palestine Industrial
Investment Company, Board Member of Arab Hotels Company
“Movenpick Ramallah”, Board Member of Convention Palace
Company, and Board Member of National Aluminum and Profiles
Company. Mr. Khatib holds a Bachelor's degree in Finance from the
University of Arab Academy for Science and Technology in Egypt, and
a Master’s degree in Finance and Investments from the University of
Western Sydney in Australia.

Mr. Eisa Mohammed Al-Mohannadi

Member - Representative of Wataniya International

Mr. Eisa Mohammed Al-Mohannadi joined the Board of Directors

of Wataniya Mobile in February 2016. Mr. Al-Mohannadi currently
serves as Director Revenue Assurance & Compliance of Ooredoo
Qatar, where he has held a number of positions since 2012. Mr. Al-
Mohannadi, was also in charge of multiple senior positions in the
field of banking services, risk management, revenue assurance and
public administration. Mr. AlMohannadi holds a Bachelor’'s degree in
Business Administration from Marymount University in the United
States of America.
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BRIEF BIOGRAPHIES OF Mr. Haitham Abu Shaaban
MEMBERS OF EXECUTIVE

MANAGEMENT

Dr. Durgham Maraee

Dr. Durgham Maraee is the CEO of Wataniya Mobile. Dr.

Maraee has extensive experience in Telecom and in business
management and investment. Prior to his appointment to

the position of CEO of Wataniya Mobile, Dr. Maraee served as
the Chief Investment Officer of PIF, where he managed PIF's
investment portfolio and developed new investment programs
that aim to promote economic growth in Palestine. Prior to
joining PIF, Dr. Maraee worked as a consultant at the Boston
Consulting Group (BCG), where he focused on providing strategy
and investment advice to leading American and multinational
corporations in several sectors. Dr. Maraee holds a Master’s and
PhD degrees from Harvard University in International Law.

Mr. Fadi Abdellatif

Fadi Abdellatif assumed his current position as the Chief
Financial Officer in September 2012. Mr. Fadi has diversified
experience in management, auditing, accounting, information
systems and consulting in various sectors, including
telecommunications. He is also a Board member in the
Palestinian Information Technology Association of Companies
- PITA, and Palestine Information and Communications
Technology Incubator (PICTI). Mr. Abdellatif joined Wataniya
Mobile at its early stage in 2007 after serving for a number of
leading organizations including Andersen, ATS and Hulul. Mr.
Abdellatif holds a Master of Business Administration Degree from
University of Haifa. Fadi is also a Certified Public Accountant
(CPA) from the United States.
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Haitham Abu Shaaban assumed his current position as Chief
Commercial Officer in December 2017. Mr. Abu Shaaban has
extensive experience in project management, entrepreneurship,
business development and strategic marketing management.
Mr. Abu Shaaban has an achievement-laden career with
reputable domestic and international companies, in the field

of development projects, telecommunications, information
technology and the private sector in Palestine in general and in
the Gaza Strip in particular. He has made several achievements
with unions and NGOs on a voluntarily basis in his capacity as an
elected board member. Mr. Abu Shaaban has a bachelor’'s degree
in International Business Administration from the California
State University, in the United States.

Mr. Osama Qawasmi

Osama Qawasmi assumed his current position as Regulatory &
Public Affairs Director in January 2013. He has wide experience
in the telecommunications sector and is considered an expert
in the regulatory aspects of the industry. Mr. Qawasmi has
served as a Director General in the Telecommunications
Ministry for more than 11 years. He has taken part in numerous
international conferences on related issues, prior to joining
Wataniya Mobile as chargé of government and institutional
relations. Mr. Qawasmi holds the Bachelor of Electronic
Engineering Degree, major in Telecommunications, from Stettin
University, in Poland.

Mr. Tarik Soufan

Mr. Tareq Soufan assumed his current position as Human
Resources & Administration Director since August 2015. Mr.
Soufan has extensive professional experience, and he has
managed different functions in the HR Directorate at Wataniya
Mobile. Mr. Soufan holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Business
Administration from An-Najah University in Palestine, and

a Master’s degree in Business Administration from Indiana
University of Pennsylvania in the USA. In addition, Mr. Soufan
holds a host of international certificates, most notably are

the information systems analysis & Design certificate from
McGill University in Canada, the HR Management certificate
from Concordia University in Canada and a certificate from the
Ooredoo Group Business Leaders Program, conducted by IMD
business school in Switzerland in 2015.




Mr. Ziad Nimer

Mr. Nimer assumed his present position as Customer's Care
Director in February 2018 after assuming the post of Sales
Manager since 2015. Mr. Nimer has distinctive experience in

the development and implementation of sales strategies and
operational plans in the Sales Department through long years
of experience working in the banking and telecommunications
sector. Mr. Nimer held the position of Branches Network Manager
in the Arab Bank before joining Wataniya Mobile as Subscribers’
Services First Manager. In addition, he has effectively
contributed to the establishment of Wataniya Mobile's Contact
and Customer Services station. Mr. Nimer has a Bachelor's
degree in Accounting from Birzeit University and a Master’s
degree in Business Administration.

Mr. Naim Nazzal

Mr. Naim assumed his current position as Network Director

in May 2015. Mr. Nazzal enjoys extensive experience in the

field of telecommunications, frequency management, project
management, and business development. He accumulated lots
of expertise working for various domestic and international
renowned companies in the field of telecommunications.

Mr. Nazzal holds a Bachelor’'s degree in telecommunications
engineering from the University of Birzeit, and a Master's degree
in Business Administration majoring in Entrepreneurship from
the same university, in addition to a number of international
certifications in multiple areas of planning, operations and
managing telecommunications systems.

Mr. Ahmad Eid

Mr. Ahmed Eid assumed his current position as Information
Technology Director since May 2015. Mr. Eid has extensive
experience in the field of mobile telecommunications in several
sectors including information technology, large-scale projects,
marketing, production management and quality management.
Mr. Eid holds a Bachelor's degree in computers from the Al-Quds
University.

Annual Report | 2017

Mr. Murad Al-Haroun

Mr. Murad Al-Haroun assumed his current position as Marketing
Director in November 2017. He has extensive professional

and technical experience in the sphere of strategic planning,
marketing, consultation and strategic projects management.

He held important posts in international, regional and local
telecommunications companies. Mr Al-Haroun holds a
Bachelor's degree in Business Administration and Administrative
information System from the Arab Academy for Sciences and
Technology in Egypt. He also holds professional certificates in
related fields of work.

Mr. Shadi Qawasmi

Mr. Shadi Qawasmi assumed his position as Marketing
Communications Director in November 2017. He was
instrumental in making tremendous change in the marketing
strategy and enhancing the market position of Wataniya Mobile
trademark. He joined Wataniya Mobile in February 2015 and is
considered one of the key strategic consultants in trademark
development and has a record of in designing and managing
marketing campaigns for the interest of many private companies
inside and outside Palestine. Mr. Qawasmi holds a Bachelor's
degree in Advertising from Brigham Young University in the
United States and a Master’s degree in Marketing Management
from the University of EDHEC in France.

Mr. Rami Barghouti

Mr. Rami Barghouti assumed his position as a Legal Counsel for
Wataniya Mobile in August 2013.He has distinctive experience in
the field of Telecommunication, Corporate and Labor Laws. Due
to his experience in corporate governance, Mr. Barghouti has
been appointed as the Secretary of the Board at the beginning
of 2014. Mr. Barghouti holds a Bachelor’'s degree in law from
Birzeit University, and a Master's degree in Commercial Law from
University of Central Lancashire in the United Kingdom.




SHAREHOLDERS OF
WATANIYA MOBILE

Wataniya Mobile was established as a
partnership between Wataniya International

- Free Zone (fully owned by the National
Mobile Telecommunications Company (NMTC)
that is mostly owned by Ooredoo Group and
Palestine Investment Fund. According to a
primary underwriting 15% of Wataniya Mobile
shares were presented for a public offering,
after which the ownership of Wataniya
International - Free Zone became equivalent to
48.45% and that of Palestine Investment Fund
equivalent to 34.03%, while 17.52% is publicly
owned, while retaining the same ownership
percentages at the end of 31 December 2017,
upon which same date the number of Wataniya
Mobile shareholders reached 10,948.
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Ooredoo Group, (formerly Qtel - the Group
changed its trademark from Qtel to Ooredoo
in the middle of 2013)) is considered to be one
of the pioneering international companies in
the telecommunications market. It is listed on
the Qatar Exchange and offers a wide range
of services in the field of mobile and fixed
telecommunications in the Middle East and
Southeast Asia. This gave Wataniya Mobile the
opportunity to gain international experience
from other Ooredoo Group companies,
operating in 10 other markets, also to benefit
from Ooredoo Group's strategic relationships
with suppliers, sellers and finance institutions
in the management of its operations,
guaranteeing Palestinian performance at

international levels. The number of subscribers with Ooredoo
Group was, as of 30 December 2017, nearly 164 million.

As indicated above, Ooredoo Group holds its interests in
Wataniya Mobile through a chain of subsidiary companies,
including the National Mobile Telecommunications Company
(NMTC), which is a pioneering telecommunications Company
listed on the Kuwait Stock Exchange. The Ooredoo Group raised
its stake in the National Mobile Telecommunications Company
(NMTC) to 92.1% on 7 October 2012, and (NMTC) owns 48.45% of
Wataniya Mobile in Palestine through Wataniya International. The
increase in investment by the Ooredoo Group reflects indirectly
on raising its stake in Wataniya Mobile in Palestine

Palestine Investment Fund (PIF) is a national Palestinian
institution that manages Palestinian funds and invests them in a
manner that maintains them as a national and strategic reserve.
PIF aims at playing a leading role in establishing an independent
Palestinian state by contributing to the development of the
Palestinian economy to make it strong, sustainable and mainly
reliant on its own resources, through launching strategic
investment programs with local and international partners from
both the public and private sectors.




INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Investor Relations Department

is committed to communicating with
shareholders, advising them on its
strategy and activities, maintaining
an efficient level of dialog and
answering queries if shareholders.
Shareholders can contact us through
the following:

Tel: +970 (0)S6 800 3000
Fax: +970 (0)56 800 2999
Email: ir@wataniya.ps
Website: www.wataniya.ps



LEGAL
DISCLOSURES

As a public shareholding Company, listed on the Palestine Exchange,
Wataniya Mobile is keen on adhering to standards through which it can
guarantee the legality of disclosure and compliance with its deadlines.
Since the Company'’s listing on PEX on 9 January 2011, neither the PCMA
nor PEX has ever asked Wataniya Mobile to give further clarifications on its

disclosures.

Compliance with Legal Disclosures:

As a public shareholding Company, listed
on the Palestine Exchange, Wataniya Mobile
is committed to legal requirements that
guarantee continuous communication with
investors, in accordance with disclosure
principles, in addition to the values by which
Wataniya Mobile works, including trust,
transparency and clarity. Wataniya Mobile is
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keen on adhering to standards through which
it can guarantee the legality of disclosure
and compliance with its deadlines, through
continued commitment to monitoring and
regulating parties of Wataniya Mobile shares
trading on one hand, and through enhancing
communication and transparency with
investors and shareholders on the other.

Regulations issued by the Palestinian government or any
foreign government that had material impact on Wataniya

Mobile operations:

The Important regulations issued by the
Palestinian government that had material
impact on Wataniya Mobile operations:
The MTIT Decision No. (17) on 09/03/2017,
that defines the prices of interconnection
services in the local networks, according to
the decision the local Fixed Termination Rate
is US¢l.3 per minute, and US¢1.8 per minute
for local Mobile Termination Rate, While the
Transit rate in local networks is 0.7 cents
per minute. The interconnection services
calculation unit is determined on a second
basis.

Lawsuits brought against Wataniya Mobile:
There are no legal procedures of lawsuits
brought against Wataniya Mobile until the
date of this report.

Shareholders’ Voting during 2017:

An ordinary meeting of the General
Assembly was held on 19 April 2017, where
voting was held on:

Approval of the Board of Directors’ report
and the financial statements for the past
financial year 2016, relieving of the members
of the Board of Directors for the financial
year 2016, and the election of the Company’s
auditor for the financial year 2017. The voting
resulted in approving the first three matters,
electing the members of the Board, and
electing PricewaterhouseCoopers (PWC) as
the Company'’s auditor for the financial year
2017.

External Auditors

Wataniya Mobile retains
PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditors. The firm
audited the financial statements for the year
2017.

External Legal Counsel

Wataniya Mobile retains BSH the legal and
consulting services in the West Bank, and
with The Legal Consultative Office in the

Gaza Strip, both as external legal counsel for
the Company in 2017

Lineage and matrimonial relationships
among members of the Board of Directors
and members of the Executive Management
There is no lineage or matrimonial
relationships among members of the Board
of Directors and the executive management
team of Wataniya Mobile. Further, none

of them has a business interest with the
Company.

Major agreements concluded by the
Company with related parties

Wataniya Mobile didn't undertake any major
transaction with related parties during the
previous two fiscal years, whether directly
or indirectly. No related party is indebted
to Wataniya Mobile, nor have they received
a benefit from any guarantee which value
exceeded Five Thousand (5000) Jordanian
Dinars or the equivalent of a currency in
circulation from the beginning of the 2017
fiscal year.

Bankruptcy

None of the members of the Board of
Directors or the executive management

has declared bankruptcy, and none was the
subject of any claim, judgment or conviction
against him/her, or any decision to prevent
him/her from performing management
responsibilities or undertaking certain
activities, during the past five years.

Board of Directors’ Remunerations
According to the Company policy, members
of the Board of Directors do not receive
any bonuses or remunerations until the
Company earns a positive income. Hence,
members of the Board of Directors of
Wataniya Mobile did not receive any bonuses,
remunerations, or in-kind benefits during
2017. Wataniya Mobile, however, covers all
travel expenses of the Board members to
attend meetings of the Board of Directors,




which amounted in total to US$2,735 during 2017.

Executive Management Remunerations

Total Remunerations of members of the executive management team amounted to
US$2,751,314 including those of the current executive management members and those
whose contracts ended during 2017, noting that there are no indirect remunerations such as
guarantees or loans.

Executive Management Contracts
Executive Management contracts are permanent contracts and are not different from those of
other employees, and comply with the Palestinian Labor Law.

Intellectual Property, Franchises and Patents

Wataniya Mobile owns the concession rights to provide the 3G services. In addition, Wataniya
Mobile also owns a number of trademarks (part of intellectual property) covering the majority
of the activities and operations carried out by the Company. It must be noted here that
Wataniya Mobile’s trademark slogan is: &) wataniya Mobile

Investment Policy and Risks

Wataniya Mobile has not made any major investments - beyond the scope of its work - over the
past two fiscal years. Accordingly, the Company is not subject to any investment risks.

Shareholders owning 5% or more as of 31 December 2017

The highest and lowest price for Wataniya Mobile shares per Quarter in 2016 and in 2015:

Trade Variable Number of Shares Owned Percentage of Shares Owned
Wataniya International - FZ LLC 125,001,000 48.45%
Palestine Investment Fund (PIF) 87,794,885 34.03%

As of 31 December 2017, there were no shareholders owning more than 5% within the free
trading shareholders (the public).

Summary of Wataniya Mobile Shares trading Activity during 2017

Trade Variable Value 2017 Ranking on Palestine Exchange 2017
Number of Shares Traded 11,435,935 9
Value of Shares Traded (US$) 12,057,835 9
Number of Deals Concluded 5,025 4
Number of Trading Sessions 239 4
Sf;g?;g;:ig(;; Capitalization as 268.320 000 4
Number of Shareholders 10,948 2
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2017 (US$) Ql Q2 Q3 Q4
Highest Price 0.87 106 106 137
Lowest Price 0.82 0.83 093 095
Closing Price 0.83 094 104 104

2017 (US$) Ql Q2 Q3 Q4
Highest Price 0.84 071 0.69 095
Lowest Price 0.60 0.61 0.63 0.63
Closing Price 0.63 0.67 0.65 0.85

Wataniya Mobile's stock movement during 2017

14 7
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1.3 7
125
12 7
115
11 7
105

0.95 7
0.9 7
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Disclosure Regulation 30-2: The return of each of Wataniya Mobile securities has been

ther Disclosur
Othe sclosures referred to in Note 21 to the year 2017 audited financial statements.

Disclosure Regulation - Article 18-2: Wataniya Mobile has submitted its 2017 audited financial
statements to the Company’s Board of Directors for approval; so there were no preliminary

: . Disclosure Regulation - Article 31-2: Financial transactions made during 2017 in currencies
financial statements.

other than the U.S. Dollar are converted to the U.S. Dollar according to the exchange rates
prevailing on the transaction date. Whereas, monetary assets and liabilities were revaluated at
the end of 2017 to the U.S. Dollar according to the New Israeli Shekel against the U.S. Dollar
exchange rate of 3.48. The Bank of Palestine is the source of the exchange rates.

Disclosure Regulation - Article 20-1-A: In general, there has been no change that has
impacted Wataniya Mobile's business for the past two consecutive fiscal years, such as
declaration of bankruptcy, merger or disposition of any of its core assets.

Disclosure Regulation - Article 20-4: Most of Wataniya Mobile's services are permanent,
non-seasonal, with the exception of some value added services related to providing special Disclosure Regulation - Articles 31-3-A+B:
seasonal content.
1. The abundance of working capital, its internal sources, sources of unused cash, and the
factors that led to its increase has been referred to in the cash flow statement in the year

2017 audited financial statements.

Disclosure Regulation - Article 20-8: There has been no interruption in the flow of Wataniya

Mobile’s business during the previous period that might have had a material impact on the

financial position of the Company.

2. Sources of capital have been referred to in Note 11 and Note 13 to the year 2017 audited
financial statements, and projected changes in capital structure have been noted under
the title Change of Control.

Disclosure Regulation - Article 21-1: With respect to Wataniya Mobile’s vision on its future
business development, the Company is in a constant state of developing its services to suit
the needs of its subscribers denoted in the research and development paragraph (page 27).

Disclosure Regulation - Articles 21-3: Wataniya Mobile does not invest or hold equity in any
other company, inside or outside of Palestine.

Disclosure Regulation - Article 21-4: Wataniya Mobile does not carry out any operational
activities outside of Palestine.

Property and equipment Location Size and features

North, middle and south of the
West Bank & Gaza Strip

Switches, transmission, radio base

Network equipment . .
station, and power equipments

North, middle and south of the Civil and infrastructure works, towers

Network infrastructure West Bank & Gaza Strip and fences

Main headquarters and

IT systems & Computers

Office equipment

Furniture and fixtures

Leasehold improvements

Others
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showrooms

Main headquarters and
showrooms

Main headquarters and
showrooms

Main headquarters and
showrooms

Main headquarters and
showrooms

Information systems

Office supplies and accessories

Furniture & fixtures at headquarter
and showrooms

Civil, electrical & mechanical
works

Fire extinguishers
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WATANIYA PALESTINE MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATION
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

FINANCIAL STATMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2017
AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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Independent auditor's report

To the shareholders of Wataniya Palestine Mobile Telecommunication - Public
Sharcholding Company

Report on the andit of the financial statements
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the finaneial
position of Wataniyva Palestine Mobile Telecommunication - Public Shareholding Company.
(hereinafter the “Company™) as at December 31, 2017, and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

What we have audited
The Company's financial statements comprise:

the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017;

the statement of profit and loss for the year then ended;

the statement of other comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

ll'uzr notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our andit in aceordance with International Standards on Auditing (15As). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors responsibilities
Jor the audit of the financial slatements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code). We have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Other matters

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2016 were audited

by another auditor whose report, dated February 27, 2017, expressed an unmodified opinion
on those statements.

Fﬁn.uumrbmr.mf.’mp'r:, Amrar Tower, Level 7, .-il'-Fr:mJ_,..iI-El'r{'fr (Ramallzh), Pelesting

T: (o7z)z 242 0230, F: (opz) 2 242 o=y, oo, puscom oidolle-eosi
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Independent anditor’s report (continued )

To the sharcholders of Wataniva Palestine Mobile Telecommunication -
Public Shareholding Company (continued)

Our audit approach
Chrarvicw

Key Auvdit Matters - Financial Performance
- Revenue Kecognition and its related I'T systems
= Impairment of aceounts receivable

Az part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material
misstatements in the financial statements. In particular, we considered where
management made subjective judgments; for example, in respect of significant accounting
estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are
inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management’s
override of internal controls, including among, other matters, consideration of whether
there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatements due to fraud.

We tailored the scope of our audit to perform sufficient procedures to enable us to provide
an opinion on the financial statements as a whole, taking into aceount the structure of the
Company, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the Company
operates.

EKey audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whele, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

How our andit addressed the

Kev Audit Matter Key Audit Matter

Financial performance
As explained in note (27) “financial | We inquired management about the

performance” accumulated losses amounted
to USD 208,090.504 as of December 31,
2017, which represents 75% of equity.

We focused on this matter due to its impact
on the working capital and for its importance
to the users of the financial statements,
especially lenders and investors.

Company's business plans including
actions that have been taken to recover
the accumulated losses. In addition, we
performed the following  audit
procedures:

o  Assessed these executed plans
especially on expanding their
services in Gaza in the last
quarter of 2017, its costs
reduction plans and
Sharcholders” approval to issue
additional capital during the

extraordinary General
assembly meeting on January
23, 2018,

+ Furthermore, we reviewed main
shareholders’ support letters
for the Company.
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«  Asgsessed the appropriateness of
related  disclosure in  the
financial statements.

Revenue recognition and its
related IT Systems

| As referred to the accompanying finaneial

statements, the Company’s revenues for
the year ended December 31, 2017
amounted to USD 85,642,733. Usage-
based airtime revenue and interconnect
revenue is the largest revenue stream of
the business, which represents more than
76% of total revenues.

Usage-based airtime revenue and
interconnect revenue is highly dependent
on the reliability of its 1T environment to
support processing of operations. We
focused on this matter because a significant
risk exists in respect of both occurrence and
acruracy of Usage-bazed aittime revenue
and interconnect revenue due to the
complexity of billing systems and the high
volume of transactions.

|

We have audited the revenues through a
combination of controls testing, data
analytics and  substantive audit
procedures covering, in particular:

# Understanding and evaluating
the significant revenue processes
and identifying the relevant
controls (Including information
technology systems, interfaces
systems and reports).

 Tested IT general controls,
covering pervasive IT risks
around aceess security, change
management, data  center,
network operations and rate
changes in the billing system

» We performed substantive
analytical procedures  after
developing an expectation of
revenues based upon usage data
and subseribers’ numbers, which
are the key drivers of each
girtime revenue stream.

* We have also tested the accuracy
of revenues by agreeing a sample
of revenues transactions back to
the customer contracts and
published or agreed tariffs.

e Performed automated and
manuals controls, and
substantive tests to ascerlain
accuracy and completeness of
the revenues.

= Review the reconciliations
between the billing systems and
the accounting system.

 Ensure revenues are reconciled
between billing systems and
prepaid system with what has
been recorded in the accounting
system through samples
eovering the entire period.

= We also azsessed the adeguacy
and presentation of disclosures
relating to revenues in the
accompanying financial
statements.
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Impairment of accounts receivahle
As referred to in note (2) to the
accompanying financial statements, the
Company's  policy on  impairment
allowance is to estimate impairment when
collection of the full or part of the amount
is no longer probable which invaolves
judgment and the use of estimate.
Estimates, based on the Company's
historical experience, are used in
determining the level of debtz that the
Company believes will not be collected.
The Company provides services to broad
based clients, mainly on credit terms.

We focused on this matter due to the high
judgment and the uze of estimate involved in
caleulating the impairment allowance,
particularly regarding the estimation of
future cash eollection.

As referred to in note (9) to the
accompanying financial statements, the
Company's outstanding gross accounts
receivable as at December 31, 2017
amounted to USD 18707581 and the
respective impairment allowance
amounted to USD 6,435,072.

We have performed the following
procedures to assess the
reasonableness of the management's
estimate of the impairment allowance:

-

Assessed the Company's
accounting policies and
process, methods and
assumptions used to develop
the estimate of the allowance
for doubtful accounts,

Asgesged key assumptions used
by management based on our
understanding of the Company.
Azsessed the allowance for
doubtful accounts by examining
reports aged by customer
(accounts receivable sub ledger
or other detailed listing) for
amounts that have been
outstanding for a long period of
time to verify that the allowance
for doubtful accounts s
appropriate at period end.

We tested the key controls
relating to data used in the
impairment allowance
computation,

Tested the management
procedures used to determine
the amount of the provision as
of December 31, 2017.

Other information

The mana nt 5 responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the 2017 annual management report, which is expected to be made available to

us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not and will not express any form of assurance eonclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified abeve and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materally inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the andit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that a material misstatement on this
other information, we are required to report the fact to those charged with governance,
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Independent auditor's report (continued)

To the shareholders of Wataniyva Palestine Mobile Telecommunication - Public
Sharcholding Company (continued)

Management's responsibility and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with IFRS, applicable laws in the State of Palestine and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
conoern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease its operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issve an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordanee with IFRSs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

# Identify and assess the risk of material misstatements of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and approprate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

& Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.
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Independent auditor’s report (continued)

WATANIYA PALESTINE MOBILE TELECOMMURNICATION PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Financial Staternents for the year ended December 31, 2017

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Al amounts are in US Dollar)

As at
To the sharcholders of Wataniya Palestine Mobile Telecommuniecation - Public December 31, Decernber 31,
Sharcholding Company (continued) Hote 2017 2016
ASSETS
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued) Mon-current assets
Property and equipment i3 56,981,253 27,469,533
# Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of Intangible assets i) 131,216,610 139,111,200
accounting estimate and related disclosures made by management. Projects in progress i5) 30,534,192 18,883,868
Total non-current assots 21E,E32,055 185,464, 601
+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of Current assats ;
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty Advances 1o cONLFCon 447,520 417,674
exists related to events or conditions that may east significant doubt on the Company’s Restricted cash (6} 6,041,514 3,951,235
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, Dther current assets (7 4,006,513 1,808,579
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Irventory (B} 4,230,008 3,463,535
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our Accounts receivable (9 12,272,509 11,276,707
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's Cash in hand and at banks {10} 33,758,276 12,263,583
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue Tatal current assets 60,796,340 38,181,913
as a going concern. Total assets 279,628,395 223,646,514
# Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Em:lud.ing the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying Equity
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. Paid-in share capital (11) 258,000,000 248,000,000
- : 3 Share premium 11,610,000 11,610,000
et s S s . s e g prcerermens o o s -
Eel“ wed scope i ) £ ok and sign t audit findings, including any significant Accumulated lastas {208,000,504) (201,444 834)
iciencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. Net equity £9,519,406 58,165,116
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all R
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, Nor-curveat Bebilities
and where applicable, related safeguards, Frovision for employess’ Indemnity [13] 5,305,159 5,520,317
Inderest -bearing loans and borrowings [14] 74,038,352 44,300,352
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those Other nos-current liability (4) 54,346,654 54,346,654
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current Total non-current labilities 134,780,165 104,167,323
peried and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's Current liabilities
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in Accounts payable 6,222,226 9,128,538
extremely rore circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our Currgnt portion of interest-bearing loans
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh i (14) WAL 13,500,000
the public interest benefits of such communication. Due to related parties (15) 252,856 177,753
Deferred revenues 3,684,628 3,647,075
Other current lizbdities [1&) 17,766 226 17,052,821
Acerued praject tosts {17} 36,782,798 1,807,802
Total current liabilities 75,328,734 51,314,075
Total liabifities 210,108 893 155 481 398
Tatal equity and liabilities 279,628,395 223,646,514

March 20, 2018

= Notes to the finandial statements from 1 to 28 form an integral part thereof,
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WATANIYA PALESTINE MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATION PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LO33
[All amotents are in US Dallar)

For the period
ended December 31,
Nate 2017 2016

Revene 85,642,733 84,118,637
Cast of services (35,969,598} (36,876,009
Gross Profit 49,673,135 47,242,628
Finance income 390,172 340,527
Currency exchange gain 34,008 1,232
General and administrative expenses (15} (31,256,041) (27 485,911)
Depreciation and amortization {3,4) {21,447 005) [19,358,364)
Finange costs (0] [4,334,245) (2,273,900]
Recovery of impalrment of accounts receivable 19) Hi, 630 1,995,497

|56,318,755) (48,780, 569)
Loss for tha year [6,645 620) (1,537,941}
Basic and diluted loss per share (21} (0.028) (0.006)

- Motes to the financial statements from 1 te 29 form an integral part thereod.
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WATANIYA PALESTINE MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATION PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2017

ETATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
[all amounts are in US Dollar)

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive loss for the year

For the period
ended December 31,

2017 2016

(6,645,620) {1,537,941)

(6,645,620 (1,537,941)

- Motes to the fimandal statements from 1 to 29 form an integral part thereaof.
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e

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Al ameunts are in US Dollar)

(Al amounts are in US Dollar)

For the period
ended December 31,
Note a7 2016
Advance Dperating activities
Paid-in share Share payments on  Accumulated Met AL?’ for theutea; (B.545,620) (1,537,41)
capital premium capital losses equity Depi B (3 10,313,421 5,386,955
Prowision for employees’ indemnity [13) 1865991 1,789,856
Balance at lml.ﬂr'_.I 1,2017 258,000,000 11,610,000 = [201,444,884) 68,165,116 Recovery for doubtful 9 (294,630} {1,999,457)
Total comprehensive loss for Gain on disposal of property and equipment (1,170} (7,140}
the year - - B000,000 (6,645,620 1,354,380 Finance revenues (390,172} (340,927)
Balance at December 31, 2017 253,000,000 11,610,000 £,000,000 (208,090,504) 69,519,496 Finance costs (20 4,334,445 4,273,940
Amaortization [4) 11,133,658 5,971,405
Balance at January 1, 2016 258,000,000 11,610,000 - [199,906,943) 69,703,057 Hon-cash tems 184,757 114,278
Total comprehensive loss for 21,100,680 21,650,933
the year } z (1,537,941 (1,537,941) Changes hnplfa:unal asiets and labilities:
Balance at December 31, 2016 258,000,000 11,610,000 - [201,8444,884) 68,165,116 m*m'“ ¥ EE:::: “'2‘5‘:‘*";:’;
Driler current adseis (2,200,666} (183.273)
Accounts payable {2,%06,312) (1,749,194)
Due to related parties 75,057 20,988
- Motes to the financial statements from 1 to 29 form an integral part thereof, Deferred revenue 37,551 {932,951)
Other current liabilities 713,405 (84,332}
Transfers to provident fund {13) {1,391,451] (262,415)
Employees’ indemnity paid {13) (384, 415] (483 758}
Met cach flows froam operating activities 13,576,306 17,057 245
Investing activities
Purchase of property and eguipment (3} [39.874.975] [2,631,734)
Proceeds from disposal of property and
equipment 51,004 32,932
Furchase of intangible assets [4) {3,330,068) [1,620,641)
bncreade in projects in progress 23,324,592 [7.612,391)
Advances to Contractons 4,970,354 1,469,245
nterest received 353,304 319,159
Met cash flows used in investing activities (14,514, 789] [10,043,430)
Fingncing gctivities
Repayment of loans {19,500, 000] (4,375,000
Long term loans recelved 40,000,000 -
Loan transsction costs paid {623,175) [551,395)
Interest paid 13,353,270 (4,058,950
Aulvance payments on capital (12} B, 000,000 -
Restricted cash {2,090,279) 50,701
Met cash flows from (used In) financing
activities 2,433,276 113,934,644)
Increase [docrease] in cash and cash
equivalents 21,404,693 (6,850,129)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 12,263,583 19,153,712
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year (10} 33,758,276 12,263,583
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- Motes to the financial statements from 1 to 29 form an integral part thereof




WATANIYA PALESTINE MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATION PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2017

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Al amounis are in US Dollar]

1. GENERAL

Wataniya Palestine Mobile Telecommunication Company (the Company), located in Rarmallah, was registered
and incorporated in Falestine on January 27, 2007 a5 a Private Limdted Shareholding Company ender registration
Mo. 562499541 On Dctober 25, 2010, the legal form of the Company was changed to a Public Shareholding
Comgpany under registration No. 562601328,

The Company was forrmed with an sauthorized share capital of 5,000,000 shares with USD 1 par value each, During
2008, the Company's authorized and paid-in shore capitad was increased to 170,000,000 shares with USD 1 par
value each. The Cormpany's Genersl Assembly in its extraordinary mesting held on October 25, 2010 ressbeed to
incrgase the Company's authorized share capital by 88,000,000 shares to each. The esisting shareholdars
Wataniya International FZ - LLE [WIL] and Palestine investrest Fund, PLC (PIF) subseribed for 49,300,000 $hares
through capitalizing a partion of the shareholders’ loans and the related accrued interest. The remaining
38, 700,000 shares were offered to the public 81 an offer price of USD 1.3 per share, resulting in a shate premism
of USD 11,620,000, The public offering took place during the period from Mowember 7, 2010 to December 2,
2010,

On March 14, 2007, the Company entered into a Bcense agreement (the License] with the Minktry of
Telecommunications and information Technology (the MTIT] to provide 2G and 3G molbdle serdoas in the West
Bank and Gaza. The term of the License shall be fifteen years from the effective date being the date on which
the MTIT makes the frequencies avallable to the Company. The effective date was originally set on August B,
208, On December 16, 20049, the MTIT approved the Company's request to determing September 10, 200% as
thie effective date, instead of August 6, 2008, since it represents the date an which anly 26 [reguincied wine
allacated. On March 16, 20015, the MTIT approved to extend the terms of the lioense period for additional five
YEars.

The Comgany started its operations on November 1, 2009,

The Company’s main activities are offering, managing, and sefling wireless telecommunication services, as well
a3 constructing and operating wireless telecommunication statlons and telephone netwerks,

Thi financial statements of the Compary as of December 31, 2017 were authorized for issue in accordance with
thi= Baard of Directars redolution on February 21, J01E.
L. SUNMIMAREY OF SIGNIEICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies appled in the preparation of these financial statements are set below, These
policies have been consistently applied bo all years presented, unless otherwise stated,

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
The fimancial statements are presented in United States Dodlar, which is the functionad cwrrency of the Comparmy.
The financial statements have been prepared wnder the historical cast basis,
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NOTES TO THE FINARNCIAL STATEMENTS
{All amounts are in US Dollar}

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

a= New and amended standards adopted by the Company
The Campany has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for thelr annual reporting
period commencing 1 Janeary 2017

e Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Lostes — Amendments to 145 13, and
e Digelasure initistive — amendments to 145 T,

& Anfedl Improvements b IFRS Standards 2014-3016 Cycla, and

» Transfiers of Investment Property - Amendments to LAS 40,

The sdoption of these amendrments did not have any impact on the ameunts recognized in prior periods. Maost
of the amendments will also not affect the current or Tuture perkods.

b= Mew standards and Interpretathons not yet adopbed

Certain new acogamting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31
December 2017 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Company, The Company's assessment
of the impact of these new standards and Interpretations is set out below.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments Mature of change IFRS 9 addresses the
Title of standand elassification

Hature of change IFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurernent amd derecagnition of
financial assets and financial labilities, introduces new rules for hedge
accounting and a new impalrment maodel for financial assets

Irnpact The Company $oes not expact the new guidance (o affect the classification
and measurement of the financial assets

There will be no impact on the Company’s aceounting for financial liabilities,
a4 the néw requirerents only affect the accounting for financial liabilities that
are designated at falr vabue through profit or loss and the Campany does not
have any such liabilities. The derecognition rules have been transferred from
45 3% Fnancial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and have pot
besn changed.

The new impairment model reguires the recognition of impalrment provisions
based on expected credit losses (ECL) rather than only incursed credit losses
as is the case under LAS 39

The Company is continuing to analyse the impact of the changes and cusrenthy
diees pot consider it Ehely to have a major impact on its adoption. This
azgesement is based on currently available informaticen and (s subject to
chamges that may arise when the Company presents it first interim financial
statements on 31 March 2018 that includes the effects of it application fram

the effective date.
Date of adoption by the Kk ke applied for financlad years commencing on or after 1 Janvary 2018,
Company
Title of standard IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Hature of change The LASE has Bsued a new standand for the recognition of revenue, Thiz will

replace LAS 18 which eowers antracts for poods and serdices and 1AS 11 which
covers constrection contracts. The new standarnd i based on the principie that
revenus i recognised when contred of a good or service transfers to a
customer. The standard permits either a full retrospective of & modified
retrospective approach for the adoption,
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

il amounts are in US Dollar]

impact The Company doss ot sxpect U6 have & majer impact an its adoplion. This
assessment s hased on currently available informathon and is sublect to
chanpes that may arise when The Company pretents its ficst interim financial
statements on 31 March 2018 that includes the effects of it application fram
the eff Ective date,

Date of adopticn by the | Mandatory Tor financlal years commencing on or alter 1 January 2018, The
Company Company intends to adept the standard wsing the modified retrospective
approach which means that the cemulative impact of the sdoption will be
recognized in retained earnings as of 1 January 2018 and that cormparatives

will not be restated.
Titlhe of standard IFRS 16 Leases
Natwre of change IFRS 16 was Biued in lanuary 2016, It will result in almost 2l leases being

recognized on the balance sheet, as the distinglion between operating amd
finance leases is removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the rght to use
the leased ibem] and a financial lizbility to pay rentals are recognized. Theonlby
cxceptions are shert-term and low-value leases. The accounting for lessors
will not significantly change.

Irmipact The standard will affect primartly the accounting for the Company's operating
leases. The Company hai nob yet atsessed what adjustments, i any, ane
niecessary for example because of the change in the definition of the leass
term and the different treatment of variable lease payments and of extension
and termination optlons. It & therefore not yet possible to estimate the
amount of right-of-use assets and lease Gabilities that will have 1o be
recognised on adeption of the new standard and how this may affect the
Company's profit or loss and dassification of cash flows going forward,

Date of adoption by the | Mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1 January 2019, A this
Company stage, the Company does nod intend to adopt the standard before its effective
date. The Company intends to apply the simplified transition approach and
will ot restate comparative amountd for the year prioe 16 firdt adoption.

There are no other standands that are not yet effective and that would be expected to have a material impact an
the entity in the current or futuwee regorting periods and on foresesable future transactions.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCLAL STATEMENTS
il amounts are in U5 Dollar)

2.3 Significant accounting Judpments, estimates and assumplisns

The preparation of financiad statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of accounting estimates and
assumptions. i also reguires MEnsgement to exercize its judgment in the protess of applying the Company’s
accounting policies, The Company's management continually evaluates s estimates, asswmptions and
judgrnents based on available information and experience. As the uwse of estimates is inherent In financlal
repaeting, actual reswlts could differ from these estimates, The areas involving o higher degree of pudgment or
complexity are described below:

The Company’s managerment reassesses the useful lives of tangible and intangible assets, and adjusts IF
applicable, at each financial year end.

| i r

The Company provides services to broad based clients, mainly on eredit terms. Estimates, besed on the
campany’s historical experience, are used in determining the level of debts that the company believes will not
be collected,

2.4 Revenue recognition

Aevenues are recognized to the extent that it is probable that the econamic benefits will flow to the Company
andd the révenug can be reliably measured, Revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received,
excluding discounts and sales commissions. The following specific recognition criteria maust akso be met before
revenue i recognized;

Rendaring of sén
Revenues from airtime are recognized when the service is rendered. Sales of prepald cellular phone cards are
recorded as deferred revenues until recognived as revenues.

Emspment sales

Revenuses froem sale of cellular phone sets are recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods have passed to the buyer and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured,

Interest income

Interest incorme & recognived & interest scerues using the effective interest rate,

2.5 Expenses recognition
Expenses are recopnized when incurred based on the accrual basis of sccounting,

According to the Palestinian Imvestment Promotion Agency certificate issued an Qetober 27, 2000, the Company
was granted the right to benefit from the Palestinian Law for Encouragement of Investment. Accordingly, the
Company is granted full exemption frorm income tax for & period of five years starting from the wear in which the
Corpany cammenced its operations. In addition, the Company’s tacable income will be subject to 50% of the
nominal tax rate until Decernber 31, 2030. During 2012, the Company agreed on the request of Palestinian
Ministry of finance regarding weluntary deferral of exemption for the years 2012 and 2013, Therefore, the
exptmption is extended wntil 2016. The company did not record Incorme tax provision for the years from inception
bo the date of financial statements due 1o increase in taxable epenses over taxable revenues.
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2.7 Property ond equipment

Property and equipment are stated ab cost less accumulated depreciation and any Impairment in valee.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the asses as follows:

Uselul Lives

BArS
MNetwaork equipment 310
Metwaork infrastructure 15
Comiputers 36
Office equipment 410
Furniture and fistures -1
Leasehold improvements 3-8
Qthars 2-10

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impalrment when events or changes in
circumstanogs indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exdsts and where the
carrying values excesd the sstimated recoverable amownt, the assets are written down o their recoversble
amount, being the higher of their fair value bess costs to sell snd their value in use.

Expenditures Incurred to replace a companent of an item of property and equipment that is accounted for
separately is capitalized, and the carrying amount of the component that Is replaced is written off, Other
subseguent expenditures are capitalized only when they increase future econamic benefits of the related Rem
of property and equipment. All ather expenditures are recognized In the statement of profit or loss as the
eapense ks incurned,

The residual vatues, useful lhves and methods of depreciation of property, and equipment afe reviewed ot each
financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, il appropriste. Duding 2016, the Company's management changed
useful lives of property and eguipment based on a market study,

2.8 Projects In progross

Projects in progress comprise costs of direct labor, direct materials, equipment, and contractors’ costs. After
completion, projects in progress ane transferred to property and eguipenent and Intangibbe assets.

The carrying values of projects in progress are reviewed for impasment when events or changes in
circurrstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where
the carrying values exeed the eitimated recoverable amount, the projects are written down to their
recoverable amouwnt.

1.9 Inventorkes

invantadies are stated 8t the lower of cost and net realizable valee; coft is determined using the weighted
average maethod. Costs are those amounts incurred in bringing each product 1o its present location and
condithon,

.10 Accounis receivable

Aocounts recelwable are stated at origing involce amount less a provision for any uncollectable amounts, An
estimate for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full or part of the amount Is no longer prabable. Bad
debits are written off when there is no possibility of recovery. During 2016 the company changed the provisloning
palicy for sccounts receivable xs the company believes that new policy provides more relevant infermation and
ks more aligned to the iIndustry practice.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[All amounts are in US Dollar)

2.11 Impairment and uncallectibility of financial assets

AR assessment s made at each statement of financial position date to determine whether there is objective

evidence that a specific financial asset may be impaired. If such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

recognized in the statement of profit or loss, impalrment is detesmined as folbows:

- For assets carried at fair value, impairment is the difference between cost and fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognized in the statement of profit or loss;

- For assots corried at cost, impairment ks the difference between carrying value and present value of future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a siméar financial asset;

- For atsets carried at amortized cost, impairment is the difference between carrying amount and the
present value of future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate,

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, bank balances,
and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three manths or less, net of restricted cash.

2.13 Accounts payable and accruals
Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services recedved, whether billed by

the supplier or not.

.14 Leases

Leases where the bessor retains substantially 21l the risks and benefits of cwnership of the asset are clazaified as
pperating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profitor lessona
siradght-line basks ower the lease term,

1.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has an ebligation (legal or constructive] arising from a past event,
and the costs 1o settls the abligation sre both probable and able to be reliably measwred.

2.16 Loans and barrewings

Loans and borrowings are initislly recognized at fair value less directly sttributable transaction costs. After initial
recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amartized cost using the
effective interest rate method.

Galns and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well
as thraugh the amortization process,

2.17 Barrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized a3 part of the cost of the
respective asset. Al other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they ooour. Bomowing Costs Consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs In connectien with the borrawing of funds,
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.18 Intangibbe assets = e im . &
The Company's main intangible asset is the icense agreement with the Ministry of Telecommunications and E E- it S = EI-
Infarmation Techrology. The term of the license is fifteen years from the effective date of September 10, 2009, g G e n h
being the date on which the frequencies to Launch operations in the West Bank were made available to the
Company,
Intanglble assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, = E ﬁ ﬁ ! E‘. = |2 E
intangible assets afe carried ot ost beds any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. § E % E W :" ::‘ % =
' E E E =l
- W [T ~
Intangible assets are amortized over the useful economic [He and assessed for impairment whenever there is an E E’l
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amartization period and the amortization method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life sre reviewed at each financial year end, Changes in the axpected 'E | @ e ¢ oo
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied In the asset are @ o E :} in T E_ E
accounted for by changing the amorization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes In E E. 5 |8 g5 |&a g
accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives i recognized in the E i P i w
statement of profit or loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangibbe asset, On March ; =
16, 2015, the MTIT approved to extend the terms of the license useful life for additional five years, E
Ligense Z 5 &Q E, R L B
8 EE soglsl gsalsl f
License cost is amortized using the straight-line method aver the license period of 20 years. Amortization " E - i S Hlo e ) ! !
expense is recognized in the income statemant. = 2 “1
sofiware g
: x g = =8 R =
Software cost is amortized using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the assers. During 2016, the w £ = w2 o ]
Company's management changed the useful lives of software based on market study made. The software's < 2 g8 2 =8
ey 3 T E- | e 'q.
wseful lives ranged Between 3 to 6. Amortization expense is recognized in the intome statement. “ K =‘ P =‘ - st L "
U -
2.19 Forelgn currencies =
Transactions denominated i ies other than USD ing during the period i & S EE -
a ons denominated in currencies r than IS0, occurring during the period, ane translated to USD wing a " 5 Seq z
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities, which are denominated in = o S el 9;' e a [g" rﬁ‘ e, o
fareign currencles are translated nto USD using the rate of eschange ot the statement of financial position date. E ﬁ E & pt B' " - :‘E o -
Gains or losses arising from exchange differences are reflected in the staterment of profit or loss, - £ P L = L
= =
B ke
2 3
2 E
i b=, i I':l | ] i
z 3 5 RES3 REsm &
ga § 3938 gs8gg @
=g §9 =REg S8 =
E 'E = g =] f e P - HH
A1
— ]
. ;
=f6s  § 2
[ ] o s
EiEr ¢ i f gR g i
= — e E tal o E x
4] o o
£22 Spsf Ji5g ff
<L E = g = E i E 3
Si: . ggizfc g2 g:
2E|2= X5 % Z35 &8 i
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Ll
4. Intanpile assets
g o L |- n On March 14, 2007, the company entéred into a license agreement (the license] with the Ministry of
E e S E i i Telecommunications and information Technology (the MTIT) to pravide 2G and 3G mobile seraces in West Bank
£ & E " ) and Gaza for a total price of L5 $354,000,000. The term of the license is twenty years from Septernber 10, 2009
o being the date on which the frequencies to enable launeh of aperstiond in West Bank were allocsted to the
Campany.
= E 3 % -} E E : E The license amount recorded in the Rneancial SMatement represents the best estimate by the company made in
= wa [efl e 2008 based on expected dates of the Gazs lsunch end 3G launch. The portion of the Boense price relating to West
= R - mE R Bank was estimated at U5 $212,400,000, of which U.5 $140,000,000 was paid on August &, 2008, The remaining
= o ¥ "" amaunt of U5 572,400,000 was deferred, The porthon of the license price of U.S 5141,600,000 ralating to Gaza

was not recognized inthe financial statements a5 the Company was not granted access to launch senvices in Gaza,
The deferred portlon was [nitlally recorded as other non- aerent labdlity at 18s fadr value of U5 544,871,337

w
B
B
w
m
=
@
=
m
=
E
=
g
2
% :
£
L]
- K]
| £
O
= = et m o calculated by discounting the W5 572.400,000 to ks present value using an interest rate of 8%, which
L E 4 =1 - ﬁ 5! _E approximated the company's borrowing interest rate. The deferred portion of the price was subsequently
E g E E ﬁ‘ m E k= measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, The intangible asset was initially recorded at
E & s P ol ol = U5 5184,871,337 being the total of the payment made an the effective dateof U5 5140,000,000 and the present
2 E value of the deferred portion of US 544,871,337,
E 1l i ekt i P o 'E The company wasn't able to launch its services as anticipated originally due to MTIT's inability to meet is
s E m R EL =) g3 ﬁ ] 5 obligation under the license by allocating the needed lrdqul:'nl.‘lﬁ and setuing the necedsary tp?m'ﬂl: far
E é iﬂ g E E E = E E. .E Bquiprrent eﬁm,r,thtlﬂthﬂﬂ%lﬁun&gwsyummethkmdhi;mwmlnmnnaddltlm
o oF LY ol Ty i g 1o & delay of more than 10 years for 3G services in the West Bank white the permissions and freguency needed
= e 1o launch 3G services in Gaza are still pending.
g -E Bazed on the fact that the company & unable to utifize all the benefits granted In the license agreemeant reswlting
T " i - 25 'z § 2 from MTIT not fulfilling its obligathons refated to 3G freguencles and International Gateways portion of the
= B b B N ot S e E license, the Company prospectively changed its accounting estimates related to the remaining license cost as of
E a g |B 2= ﬁ ] E January 1, 2011, Accordingly, the company started to amodtize only the pald amount of the license less
5 we e a- = i E accumulated amortization a5 of December 31, 2010 over the remaining wseful life of the license, Further, the
1'5‘1 Lompany stopped calculating interest on the deferred liability until the time it reaches an agreement with MTIT
o .E regarding the 3G frequencies and international Gateways portion of the licente,
E L= L . | i b 0 | En L] F
> = E na T =8 |0 The Company requested the Government to walve the remaining license fee of U.5 $214,000,000 that was set to
=) = E ":E";:‘. ﬁ E E E g be paid in two installments of LS SE0,000,000 and US 5134000000 upon reaching certain subscribers
= it & B - x o w = milestones in addition o launching 26 and 36 services In both west bank and Gaza to compensate the Company
g o = I 4 = 5 for the losses incurred from the MTIT's inabllity to meet its obligation under the license, During 2014, the
E = E a ministers’ council formed a committes to review the value of the License In light of the losses inpurred by the
= E a Company. During 2015 and based on committee's recommendations, the MTIT isswed a decree which granted
s . ﬁﬁ E‘ E ﬁ. E g ﬁ\ .3 % u the Company an extension of the useful life of the License by an additional & years, Thus, the Company's
= g 'E g E w = o E o S| ﬁ o i a management changed the estimated wseful life of the License from 15 to 20 years.
n Sl i S ~
a -E E % - Rl [ - R | - b | E‘E On October 23, 2017 the MTIT requested the second payment of the Boense for an amaunt of USD 60,000,000,
1y g E 'E ¥ However, due to the MTIT delay in fulfilling its obligations in relation with launching 26 in Gaza and 3G in west
= e g 3 E ] bank and not fulfilling its obligations yet in relation with launching 3G in Gara which resulted in sccumulated
=] g. ju i‘_ E = losges incurred by the Company, the Company's management belisves that this amaunt will aot became dus and
= E E = H% it atill in dizsuttion with the Government in this regard,
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The movement on intangible assets is as follows:

Lt Software Total
Cost
At January 1, 2017 184,871,337 33,277,388 218,148,725
Additions during the pesr - 3,339,068 3,339,068
At December 31, 2007 184,871,337 36,615 456 231487753
Accumulated Amortization
At January 1, 2017 63,273,534 15,764,591 79,037,525
Amartization for the year * 6,042,153 5,091,505 11,133,658
At Decermber 31, 2007 69,315,087 20 856,096 90,471,183
Nt carrying amount
At Decembaor 31, 2017 115,556,250 15,760,360 131,316,610
At December 31, 2016 121,598,403 17,512,797 139,111,200

*During the year 2016, the management of the company conducted a market study that resulted in the
madification of the wseful life of computer systems. This adjustment resulled in 3 decrease in the amortization

armcunt of WSD 381,386 for the pear,
5. Prajects in progress

2017 2016
Hetwoerk equiprment 27,052,168 13,755,297
Capitalized interest cost e 2522835
IT systems 1,540,929 1331673
Hetwork infrastrucihure 9R7.RETT 339,891
Billing system 7,230 100,406
Rencvations 70,601 RE 200
Sites electricity 176,845 2216
Others 718,542 422,840

30,534,192 18 883 568
The mosement on projects in progress (s a3 folbaws:

2017 2016
Beginning balance 18,883 868 30,049,245
Additions 35,749 489 1,841 876
Transferred to property and equipment and intangible assets (23,6E9,660) (8,236,219
Cost adjustmants (#09,505) (4,771, 034)
Ending Balance 30,534,192 1E,BE3,BGE

(Al amounts arein WS Dollar)

. Other current assets

2017 2016
Prepaid sites” rent 1,237 625 011,946
Prepasd warranty B8 6T 424,414
Prepaid rent expense 234,244 197 877
Due from emplayees 50,404 42 462
Prepad achvertisement 67,423 13,050
Due from VAT 1,570,256 -
Other 278,064 219,230

4,046,513 1808975

. Inventory

2017 2016
Spare pafts 1,012.331 2,468,914
SIM cands 737,784 497 891
Arcessories and other consaemables 1,549,725 234,985
Scratch cards 171,957 140,388
Handsets 358207 121 356

4,230,008 3,453,535

a. Accounts receivable

2017 2016
Recebeables from subscribers 15,068,304 14,500,014
Interconnection partners 2927 984 2,780,958
Roaming partners and other receivables 711,393 B B

1E,707 581 17,370,578
Impairment of accounts recesvable {6,435,072] [6,093,871)

12,272,509 11,276,707

Following is a summary of the movemnent on the impairment of accounts recefvables account during the year:

2017 2016
Beginning Balance 6,093,871 8,184,295
Recoveries (294,630) (1,993,437)
Write offs - (167.331)
Currency exchange 535,831 7,404
Ending Balance 6,435,071 6,093 E71

During the year 2016, the Company's management amended the policy of the Fnpairment of accounts

receivables, inthe opinion of the Company's management, the new impairment of accounts receivables palicy

provi information to the market. This adjustment resulted in USD 627,250,
The estimated cost to complete the above projects as of December 31, 2017 is USD 5,459,917 (2015: USD s mare relevant in an e S A rttid T

7A86,426).

6.  Restricted cash

This balance represents as of December 31, 2017 an amount of WSD 3,960,589 (2016: USD 3,932 906) restricted
in relation ta the syndicated loan agreement {Note 14) and an amount of USD 2,080,525 (2016: USD 18,329) in
relation to better of guarantees granted from local banks to the Company.
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As at December 31, 2017, the aging analysls of the unimpalred trade receivabies is as follows: 14,  Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Past dus but not impaired 2017 2016
1-30 Bore than Sharcholders’ loans
Mot dwe days _31-60days  61-90days  91-120 days 120 days Taotal Wataniya International FZ — LLC [WiL)® 2,850,000 2,850,000
Palestine Investmeant Fund, PLC [PIF)® 2,150,000 2,150,000
2017 7,680,589 1,600,561 1,061,897  B32422 1096640 - 12,272,500 Accrued interest (WIL) 1,310,483 1,141,442
D016 6,123,940 1,113,942 1,259,711 1,086,448 905,115 TETS51 11,276,707 Accrued interest [FIF) SRR, 166 Bh0, B3
7,258,649 7,002,086
The Company expects to recover all unimpaired receivalles. Third parties” loans
10.  Cashin hand and at banks Local banks’ loans ** 43,347,200 39,300,000
2017 116 IFC lpan®™" 41,652,800 25,200, D
§5,000,000 64,500,000
Cashi in hand 230,340 117,530 Less: trandaction costs directly attributable ta thivd parties”
Cash at banks and short term deposits 33,527,936 12,146,053 loans (7,640,297 (7,700, 734)
33,758,276 12,263,583
T ——— B4,B58,352 63,800,352
#As of December 31, 2017, the Company had 1en short term deposits amounting to WSD 25,313,254 (2016: USD
11,326,261} at bocal banks with an average interest rate of 3.12% % {2016: 2.92%). Non-cument portion 74,058,352 44,300,352
Current portion 10,620,000 19,500, 00
1. Paid-in share capital S SR
2017 2016 = On June 22, 2000, the Company entered into 2 loan agreement with its shareholders for a totad amount
= aof USD 30,000,000, The loan includes an uniubordinated portion of USD 5,000,000 and & subordinated
i gy i el portion of USD 25,000,000, The loan bears annual interest rate of 5.85%, The loan and the interest of the
Public shareholders 45,204,115 45,204,115 subordinated portion hed been converted to equity during the year 2000, The repayment of the loan and
258,000,000 258,000,000 interest of the unjubordinabed portion is to be made when the Company has the financial ability to make
payment. On September 3, 2004, the Company amended the agreement and increased the unutiized
12.  Advance payments on cagital kean balance to become U5, $ 35,000,000,
This amount regresents the advance payments from the main shareholders to increase capital, **  On May 31, 2012, the Company signed a new syndicated loan (the Loan] agreements with various kenders
2017 fr & total amount of S0 125,000,000 to finance the expansion of the exsting network n West Bank, the
launch and development of the network in Gaza and its operations and to repay the obd syndicated loan.
Eﬂ:.ﬁ?ﬁﬁ:ﬁ:ﬁgmﬁ ;'im The lcan was divided to three phases, the first phase smounting to USD 75,000,000 i related to
B.:m.ﬂﬂ'ﬂ refinancing and West bank operations, the second phase amounting to USD 40,000,000 & related to Gaza
operations and will not be utilized wntll the approval is obtained to release the network equpment Lo
13.  Provision for employees' indemnity Gaza, and the third phase amownting to UISD 10,000,000 will ke utilized when the 36 frequencies will be
Dt 16 providest obtalned. During Decemnber 2002, the Company received USD 75,000,000 and repaid the utilived balance
Severance pay fund Total of thie ald syndicated loan and related interest. On January 30, 2044, the Company waived the third phase
2017 = - = with total amount of USD 10,000,000 with the appeoval of the various lenders. The Loan bears annual
Balance, beginning of year 4,991,727 518,590 5,520,317 imterest rate of 3 months LIBOR plus 5% and repayable in guarterly installments commencing September
Additions 1,190,337 675,654 1,865,991 15, 2014 and ending June 15, 2019. The Company will be subject to 2% a3 commitment fees on the non-
Payments during the year (384 415) - (1R4,415) utilized portion of the loan. During 2016, the Company extended the repayment schedule date tll 15,
Transfer to provident fund account® x (1,331,491 {1,351,491) 2021 and the lenders granted 8 waiver to the Company to reduce the commitment fees to 1% on the non-
Currency exchange o435, 245 239,512 TEATS? utilized portion of the loan, Due to the fact the company released the network equipment to Gaza on
Balance, end of year 6,342,854 32,265 5,395,159 October 24, 2007, the company became eligible to the second phase on the syndicated loan and
2016 accordingly in December 17, 2007 the company received the UISD 40,000,000 representing the second
galance, beginning of year 4,246,500 55,324 4,301,824 phase of the syndicated bnan. Second phase of the ban is repayable in guarterly instaliments commencing
Additions 1,180,908 845,294 2,025,292 December 15, 2019 and ending Septembaer 15, 2034,
prmm!e:::::m‘;::tﬁxd W MBME?J [lﬁl.ﬂléh :;:‘:ﬁ; On December 9, 2012, the Company signed an agreement with a local bank 10 finance the network
Currency exchange 47,487 {5,613} 37,874 equipment purchased for Gaza with a total arsount af USD 12,000,000; the Company will repay this
Balance, end of year F E! 737 EE EE Euu 2!7 amaunt upon commencemaent of the second phase of the syndicated loan but not after December 9, 2017.
The loan bears annual interest rate of 3 months LIBOR plus 5.25%. On December 17, 2017 the Company
. The company transferred the balance to the provident fund sccount which is separstely sdministered. repaid this loan as it became eligible for the second phase of the syndicated loan.
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Following i the third parties’ loans principal maturities for the utilized balance:

Matures during 2018 10,620,000
Matures during 2019 14,740,000
2020 18,240,000

2021 13,900,000

2022 10,000,000

2023 10,000,000

2024 7,500,000

85,000,000

*®%  This item represents legal and other fees directly sttributable to loans snd bosrawings that were incurned
i orelakicn o the loan agresments with the respective financial institutions,

15, Dueto related parties

2017 2016
Ooredon Group LLC 152 856 177,759
16.  Other current liabilities

2017 2016
Accrued interconnection and roaming cost 2,502 330 067511
Accrued bomus 3,826,883 2,997 317
Accrued royvalty fees = 430,952
Aeerued sales commilssion 2648 866 BE¥3,063
Acerued payrall 1,181 901 1,272 372
Marketing coss Ba2 325 1,168,053
Due to VAT . 7T AT
Employees vacations provision 676,020 408,188
Accrued interest and commitreent fess 307,832 223,839
Other 5,779 990 5,229,052

17,766,226 17,052 821

17.  Accrued project cost
This steount represents the accrued cost for the projects in progress (Mote 5].

18,  Income Tax

According to the Palestinian bwestment Promotion Agency certificate Issuved on October 27, 2009, the Company
weas granted the right ve benefit from the Palestinian Low for Encouragement af investment. Accordingly, the
Company iz granted full exempticn from income tax for a period of five years starting from the year in which the
Company commenced s operations. In addition, the Company’s taxable income will be subject to 50% of the
naminal tax rate until December 31, 2030, During 2012, the Company agreed on the request of Palestinian
Ministry of Finence regarding woluntary deferral of exermption fof the wears 2012 and 2013, Therefore, the
exernption s extended until 2016, The Company did not record Income tax provishon for the years from incepthon
to thee date of financial statements due to increase in taxable expenses over taaable revenues. During 2017 the
Company reached to a settlement with the Palestinkan tax Department for the year 2009 to 2015. The Company
has not yet reached 10 8 setlement with incorme tax department for the years 2016 and 2017,
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19, General and administrative expenses

2017 2016
Salaries and related egpenses 15,656,571 13,269,638
Marketing expenses 5448200 5,898,116
Maintenance 2971515 2,E24,397
Rent 2,553 469 1,542 041
Accommadation, travel and iransporiation 997,967 561,325
Warchousing and loglstics 408,000 414 458
Water, slectricity and fuel 470,284 397 3RE
Professipnal and consulting fees B72,673 362,707
Infurance 326,670 A7 076
Spcurity services 266,316 197,190
Software license expense 170,446 162,664
Telephane, fax and mail 70171 85,761
Subscription fees 137,791 82,093
Bank changes 48011 35,805
Spationeny and supplieg 23,074 15,600
Other 827,183 890,558

31,256,041 27,485,911
20. Finance costs

2017 2016
Interest on boans and borrowings 3649833 3,617 168
Amortization of transaction costs 6E4,612 661,772

ﬁe.ﬂ& 4,273,940
21.  Basc and Diluted Esrrings Pes Share

2017 2016
Loss for the year (6,645, 620) (1,537,941)
Welghted average number of shares {Share) 258,000,000 258,000,000
Bashe and diluted koss per share (0.026) {0.006)

22, Commitments and contingencies

A5 of the financial statements date, the Company has outstanding contractual oommitments retuliing fram
purchases, senices and construclion contracts, a5 well as its license.

Following i & summary of the outstanding commitrments:

2047 2016
Contracts and purchase orders 35,294,055 12,360,970
License® 159,653,345 159,653 346
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o As disclosed In {Note 4] to the financial statements, the Cormpany entered into a license agresment with
MTIT for a total price of U.5. 5 354,000,000, The unpaid portion of the license cost, net of the related non-
curnent Rability, of U.5. $159,653,346 represents the unrecognized Nabifity in the financial statements
resulting from MTIT delay in fulfilling its obligations in relation with launching 26 in Gaza and 3G in west
bank and mot fulfilling its obligations yet in relation with faunching 3G in Gaza which resufted in
accurmulated losses incurred by the company.

The Company entored into an agreement to lease the office building on January 27, 2007, During 2012, the

Company renewed the contract for additional 5 years for a total amount of USD 2,633,046 with an option to
renew the contract. The Company has renewed the contraet for additional fiee wears during February 2017,

Foldlowding is the future minimurn rentals payable under non-cancellable operating lease:

usn
Within one year 471,847
After one year but not more than five years 1,502,344
1,974.241

23, Related party transactions

Related parties represent associated companles, sharsholders, directors and key management personnel of the
Company, and entities contralled, [ointly controlled or significantly influenced by such parties. Pricing policies
and terms of these transactions are approved by the Company's management.

Balances with refated parties included in the staternent of financlal position were 2 fallows:

Mature of
relationshig o7 2016

Interest-besring loans and borrowings

[rote 14) Shareholders 5,000,000 5,000,000
Accrued Interest Shareholders 2,258,643 2,002 086
Duse o related panties (note 15) Sharcholders 252 A5G 177,758
Accrued key manspement personnel

compensation Key management 3215951 2,445 467
Accounts Recelvable Shareholder - 1,727
Advante payment on capital Shareholders 8,000,000 =

Transactions with related parties intleded in the statement of profit or kass were &5 follows:

017 2015
Fimance costs 296,553 321,330
Eey management personne compensation 1,070,484 1, 702 430
Revenue from sharcholders 24,553 21,975
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24, Fairvalue of financial instruments
Financial instruments comprise of financial assets and financial kabilivies.

Carrying Value Fair Valus

Financial assets
Apcounty receivable 12,272,509 12273509
Other cufrent assets 221,349 221,309
13,453 858 12,493,858
Interest-bearing loans and barrowings B4,658,352 84,658,352
Other non-current ability 4,345 654 54,346,654
Accounts payable 6,222 226 6,222,226
Duwe to related panies 252 256 252 856
Other current Babilities 17,765 216 17,766,236
Sccrued project cost 16,782 798 A6, 7RE2, 79K
200,029,117 200,029,117

Financial assets other than cash in hand and cash at banks consist of, acoounts receivable and some ather eurrent
assets. Financlal lizbdlities consist of interest-bearing loans and borrowings, other ron-current liabdlity, acoounts
pavable, due to related parties, ather current liabilities, and acorued project cost. The fair values of financial
assets and financial liabdlithes approsdimate their carrying armawnis.

25, Rizk management

Interest rate ik

The Company is expided to Interast rate risk on Bs Interest-bearing assets and liabilivies (short term bank
deposits and Interest bearing loan and bosrowings), The following table demonstrates the sensithity of the
statement of profit orloss to rexsonably possible changes in Interest rates, with all ather variables held constant,

The sensitivity of the staterment of profit or boss is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the
Company’s profit for one year, based on the floating rate financial assets and financial labilities held at
December 31, 3007, There is ne direct impact on the Company’s equity,

Effect
Increasef on statement of
decrease In profit or loss for the
basls points year
] (1]
2047
usD +15 (B1.755)
usD -10 54,503
2016
usp *15 (80,461)
Ush -1 23641
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Foreign currency risk
The analbysis caloulates the effect of a reasonably possible movement of the U5, 5 currency rate against the
ksraell Shelel (ILS), with all other variables held constant, on the statement of profit or loss.

Inerease) Effect
decrease on Statement of
in LS rate profit or loss for the
to LS 5 year
W 55
2017
usD 45% 07,468
uso 5% (IT.468]
2016
ush +5% 3,210
Ush -5% (3.210]
Credit risk

Credit risk i the risk that ane party ta b financial instrument will £ to discharge an obligation and cause the
other party 1o incur a financial loss.

Most of the Company's customers are prepaid card customers. The maximum exposure with respect 1o
oustamers is the canrying amount as disclosed in (Note 9).

With respect to credit risk arising from the other finandal assets, including cash and cash eguivalents, the
Company's exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterpanty, with a maximum exposure equal o
thie earrying armbunt of thete financial agsets

Liguidity risk
The Cormpany limits its Rgusdity risk by securing bank loans and funding from sharehodders.

The table below summarizes the matusities of the Company's undiscounted financial [Eabilitbes at December 31,
2007 and 2016 based on contractual payment dates and cwrrent market interest rates,
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Less tham 3 3ta 12
months months 1- B years Total

December 31, 2017
Interect-bearing loans and
borrowadngs 3,348,805 13,022,631 89,034,701 105,406,137
Accounts payable 6,272,276 - - 6,222,136
Due to related parties b 252 856 . 252 856
Other current liabilities - 17,766,226 - 17,766,226
Gther noncurrent liabilithes - = 54,346,654 4,346,654
Total liabilities 8,571,031 31,041,713 143,381,355 183,994,099

Less than 3 3te 12

manths maonths 1- 5 years Total

December 31, 2016
Interest-bearing loans and
barrowings 1,655,722 20,582 B28 50,751,083 73,989,633
fcoounts pavable 9,128,538 - - 9,128,538
Due to related parties - 177,758 - 177,759
Other current liabilities . 17,052 821 - 17,052 821
Other non-cwrrent liabilities . = 54,346,654 54,346,654
Total liabilities 11,784,260 37,813,408 105,057,737 154,655,405
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26. Capital Managerment
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management ks to ensure that it maintaing healthy capital ratios
in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure end makes adjustments Lot in fight of changes in business canditions.,
Mo changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended December 31, 2017 and
the year ended December 31, 2016. Capital comprises paid-in share capital, share premium and accumulated
losses, and is measured at USD 69,519,496 a5 at December 31, 2017 (2016: USD 68,165,116).

27. Financial Performanoe

The balance of accumulated losses resched to USD 208,090,504 (2016: USD 201,444, 884) as at December 31,
2017, The major shareholders of the company are committed to keep on financing the Company's operations
and cover losses. Moreover, actions have been taken by the Company during 2017 to execute plans such as
expanding the sendces in Gaes in the last quarter of 2017, Further, Sharcholders approved to ssue additional
eapital during the extrasrdinary General assembly meeting on January 23, 2018 which is part of the actions and
plans to recover accumalated losses,

28. Concentration of risk In geographic area

The Company is carrying out the majority of its activitios in Palestine. The political and econosmic situation in the
area increases the risk of carnying out business and may adversaly affect the pedormance.

239,  Subsequent Evenis

On Janwary 23, 2008 and during the extraordinary meeting of the Genersl Assembly of the Company,
shareholders approved increasing the capital of Wataniva Palestine Mobile Telecommunication Limived
Comparny through offering 35,000,000 mere shares for public subscription to increase the capital from LSD
258,000,000 to USD 293,000,000 with USD 1 par valee each,




